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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The 2014/15 financial year was an eventful year for the Group.
We are pleased to evidence that the Group has successfully
diversifying its business into other sectors including trading,
money lending and finance leasing apart from vessel chartering.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$322.1 million and profit before tax of
approximately HK$8.8 million. The significant improvement of the
results of the Group was mainly attributable to the effort of the
Group in broadening and enlarging of its revenue base in
different segments of operation.

The Group's vessel charting businesses provides a stable income
growth during the year. With the strengthened financial position
and insight of the management, the Group has successfully
expanded its business into new segments. The Group maintained
a prudent philosophy of good governance, hence to maintain
excellent assets quality, stability of financial resource and
produce a steady growth in the Group’s long-term development.

Looking forward, the Group will actively identify and explore
other investment and business opportunities to broaden its
assets and revenue base. The Group will cautiously search for
investment opportunities in order to enhance and improve the
business operation and profitability of the Group.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our business
partners and shareholders for their continuing confidence in our
Group. I would also like to express my deepest appreciation to all
staff and our Board of Directors for their effort and dedication to
the Group.

Zheng Juhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group achieved a turnover of HK$322.1 million (2014
HK$12.9 million) during the year. The profit before taxation for the
year was approximately HK$8.8 million whilst a loss of
approximately HK$3.5 million was recorded for the last
corresponding year. The significant improvement in the operating
result of the Group was mainly due to its business diversification
into trading, money lending and finance leasing during the year.
A profit recorded for the year was mainly attributable to the
recognition of a gain on changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments of approximately HK$14.3 million.

In order to strengthen the capital base and financial resources of
the Group for expansion of its business, the Company
successfully completed the Rights Issue of 844,000,000 shares of
the Company of HK$0.01 each (before the consolidation of every
ten shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued and unissued share
capital into one share of HK$0.10 each consolidated share) with
net proceeds of approximately HK$147.7 million on 3 April 2014.

As at 31 March 2015, the total assets and net assets of the Group
were HK$352.0 million (2014: HK$207.4 million) and HK$215.6
million (2014: HK$60.2 million) respectively. The significant
improvement of the financial position of the Group was mainly
attributable to the fund raising activities as mentioned above.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Vessel Chartering

Since the acquisition of the general cargo ship, Vessel Bao Xin, in
September 2013, the Group’s vessel chattering business has
been steadily improved. Vessel Bao Xin is engageable in most dry
bulk cargo shipments and has carried out a total of 12 voyages
(2014: 8 voyages) between the PRC and South-East Asia region
and recorded a turnover of approximately HK$26.0 million (2014:
HK$12.9 million) which contributed a profit of approximately
HK$2.0 million (2014 loss of HK$7.2 million) for the year ended 31
March 2015. As Vessel Bao Xin has strong market demand and a
steady customer base, the Board is optimistic in the Group's
vessel chartering business in the years to come.

BRI i L 23 B

%t 7% [B] B8

RE B F AU AEE 322,100,000 L (==
—PO4E 1 12,900,00058 7T ) ° ANEEERSHR T A
St F 478,800,000 7T+ M L EE R EFRIERE
E518 473,500,000 7T - NEE 2 LA EER
BENEFEHRNFREERZILLEESR
E5 BEEMBERE RAFEHBZET
FEHBEEEREAAEEZHKREL
14,300,000 JTTATER °

BINEANER EARB LA BERNEER
¥% ARARBER-_Z—MEMA=ZARNE
X 4 B% 844,000,000 % S X 1B 0.01 78 7T (R E
BIIRARBIIRASTREREECOIELZ
&6t A —REE0E T ZA FHIDAT)
ZARRQBIRA - BTS 5RI8 % BE 49 147,700,000
BT ©

RZZF-—RF=A=1+—H x&EBEZEER
BEXREEFES R 4352,000000% T(==
—PY4F : 207,400,000 7T ) & 215,600,000 7 7T
(ZZ—M% : 60,200,000 7T) A& EH 2 8t
BARRBESRE  T2VARUEREZER
TEENFTEL

XKEERRE

MMmAEE
BE-E—=FhLAKB B —HKEM(ES
) AEEMMAEEBTE N E - &
SO RN KEBDEEREME RN REMEEE
WEEHITT +ZEmENRE(Z—WNF :
NEMEMR) TRBEE-_Z—RAF=A
=+ — B IEFEHFSUA L 26,000,000 T (=
T — P04 : 12,900,000 T ) & B B i A 49
2,000,000 7T (== —PY4F : [&787,200,000%8
JL) c MR EEBREARANTISH KEEE
MEF AR - EESHARNEB R EMME



NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED o {“ImR &= AR A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI B 23 B

Trading Business

The Group has engaged in the trading of methanol during the
year ended 31 March 2015, which attributed a total of
approximately HK$292.9 million to the turnover with a profit of
approximately HK$3.5 million.

Methanol is a highly versatile commodity for which demand is
growing rapidly. Its compounds find use in both energy and
petrochemical applications. In the energy sector, the market for
methanol is expanding as methanol is used in transportation
fuels. In the traditional petrochemical sector, methanol
derivatives are used in a range of products from adhesives to
paints and polyester. Following the stabilisation of the global
economy with a sign of rebound, the Board believes that the
demands for methanol will grow steadily.

Besides of the methanol trading business, the Group has also
entered into a memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with
an independent third party in July 2014 in relation to a possible
subscription and/or acquisition of a group of companies (the
“Target Group”) which is principally engaged in the trading of
plastic pellets, seafood and electronic components business in
Hong Kong and the PRC. As at the date of this report, the Group
is still in the process of performing a due diligence review on the
Target Group.

Furthermore, a PRC trading company with registered capital of
RMB10 million and a 80% owned joint venture company (the “JV
Company”) have been formed to be engaged in trading business.
The Group intends to invest HK$30 million in the JV Company to
commence its business in the coming months.

The Group is optimistic in development of its trading business
and will deploy more resources and take appropriate strategy to
expand the sources of income from the trading business.

Money Lending Business
In order to maximise the return from cash management, the
Group granted certain loans with a total principal amount of
HK$21 million to certain borrowers during the year, and
recognized an aggregate interest income of HK$863,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

The Group adopted a prudent risk management policy, with the
money lending business continuously carrying out regular review
of credit risk over the existing borrowers. While the Group will
proactively explore customers with good quality to expand its
business scale, it will continue to adopt a prudent credit risk
management strategy to ensure a healthy development in its
money lending business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Leasing Business

In July 2014, the Group entered into the finance leasing business
through the acquisition of a company and its subsidiary (the
“Leasing Company”) which has been granted a licence to operate
finance leasing in Qianhai Shenzhen — Hong Kong cooperation
zone of Shenzhen City, the PRC with registered capital of US$10
million which has been increased to US$50 million in February
2015, of which US$10 million has been paid up by the Group as at
31 March 2015.

The finance leasing business has attributed a turnover of
approximately HK$2.3 million and profit of approximately HK$1.1
million to the Group during the year ended 31 March 2015.

The finance leasing market has played an important role in
various industries and has great business potential in the PRC.
Since the commencement of the business of the Leasing
Company, it has signed up a total contract sum of approximately
RMBA497 million during the year. The Group adopted a prudent
approach in the finance leasing business and mainly dealt with
enterprises with strengthened financial position to minimise its
credit and business risks. The Board believes that the finance
leasing business will produce a steady growth in the Group's long
term performance and will maximise the future contribution to
the Group.

Other Investments

The investment market sentiment has been rebound during the
second half of the year. Taking advantage of the booming stock
markets, the Group has invested surplus funds in certain
securities listed in Hong Kong with an unrealised gain of
approximately HK$14.3 million. The Group adopts a prudent
approach in its treasury management. The management will
monitor the stock markets closely and keep looking for
opportunities of realising the investment gains.

Looking forward, the Group will actively identify and explore
other investment and business opportunities to broaden its
assets and revenue base. The Group will cautiously search for
investment opportunities so as to produce a steady growth in the
Group's long term performance.

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Capital Structure and
Gearing

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources. On 3 April 2014, the Group completed the
Rights Issue of 844,000,000 shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each (before the consolidation of every ten shares of HK$0.01
each in the issued and unissued share capital into one share of
HK$0.10 each consolidated share) with net proceeds of
approximately HK$147.7 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI B 23 B

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had cash and bank balances of
HK$118.7 million (2014: HK$163.0 million) and total borrowings of
HK$21,000 (2014: HK$756,000). The Group's gearing ratio,
calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity, was 0%
(2014: 1.3%). The liquidity ratio, being the ratio of current assets
over current liabilities was 2.09 as at 31 March 2015 (2014:1.15).

The improvement in both the gearing and the liquidity ratio was
mainly attributable to the fund raising activity as mentioned
above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollar (“"HK$"), Renminbi (“RMB"), Euro (“EUR") and United States
dollar ("US$") and its revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and
borrowings are principally denominated in HK$, RMB, EUR and
US$.

The Group does not enter into any instruments on the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group will closely monitor exchange
rate movement and will take appropriate activities to reduce the
exchange risk.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FUND RAISING

ACTIVITIES

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting on 4 March 2014, the
Company announced a rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) of
844,000,000 rights shares (“Rights Shares”) of HK$0.01 each
(before the consolidation of every ten shares of HK$0.01 each in
the issued and unissued share capital into one share of HK$0.10
each consolidated share) at a subscription price of HK$0.18 per
Rights Share on the basis of one Rights Share for every one share
held with bonus issue (the “Bonus Issue”) on the basis of two
bonus shares (“Bonus Shares”) for every one Rights Share taken
up under the Rights Issue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Rights Issue and the Bonus Issue was completed on 3 April
2014, and a total of 2,532,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each
(before the consolidation of every ten shares of HK$0.01 each in
the issued and unissued share capital into one share of HK$0.10
each consolidated share), based on 844,000,000 Rights Shares
and 1,688,000,000 Bonus Shares, were issued with net proceeds
of approximately HK$147.7 million, being applied as follows as at
the date of this report:

BRI i L 23 B
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Business development ERRE

— Vessel Chartering business — SRR 30,000 - -
— Money Lending business —EBEE% - 20,000 20,000
— Finance Leasing business —REHEER - 80,000 80,000
30,000 100,000 100,000
Working capital LEES 47,700 47,700 47,700
147,700 147,700 147,700

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting held on 6 January
2015, the capital structure of the Company had been restructured
by share consolidation of every ten shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each into one consolidated share of HK$0.10 each.

Save as the disclosure above, there was no changes in the capital
structure of the Company during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRI B 23 B

As at 31 March 2015, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$100 million divided into 1,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each, of which, 337,600,000 shares were issued and
fully paid.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 17 April 2015,
the Company entered into a placing agreement with a placing
agent to place shares comprising up to 67,520,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each at a placing price of HK$1.00 per placing share. The
Placing was completed on 6 May 2015 with net proceeds of
approximately HK$65.5 million which has been fully applied into
the finance leasing business of the Group.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS
As at 31 March 2015, none of the Group’s assets was pledged to
secure any facilities and borrowings granted to the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF ASSETS

On 9 July 2014, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to acquire (the
“Acquisition”) the entire issued share capital of a company and
its subsidiary which has been granted a licence to operate
finance leasing in Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Cooperation
Zone of Shenzhen City, the PRC, for a cash consideration of
HK$3,000,000.

Details of the Acquisition are set out in note 32. Save as disclosed
above, there has been no significant acquisition and disposal of
assets of the Group during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2015.

COMMITMENTS

Details of the commitments are set-out in note 34.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31 March 2015, the Group employed approximately 46
employees. The Group continues to maintain and upgrade the
capabilities of its workforce by providing them with adequate and
regular training. The Group remunerates its Directors and
employees mainly based on industry practices and individual’s
performance and experience. On top of regular remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible
staff by reference to the Group’s performance as well as
individual’s performance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AR R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board believes that good governance is essential to the
maintenance of the Group’s competitiveness and to its healthy
growth. The Company has adopted practices which meet the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure its continuous compliance with the CG Code.
The Company has been in compliance with all code provisions
set out in the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2015, save
for the deviations from code provision A.6.7 which was explained
below.

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. One independent non-executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors did not attend a
special general meeting held on 6 January 2015 and 30 March
2015 respectively due to other work commitments. The Company
will strengthen its planning process, by giving all Directors
sufficient time to arrange their work in advance and providing
any necessary support for their presence and participation in the
meetings, so as to facilitate all Directors attending the Company's
future general meetings.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of the
Group and its duties include the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, business strategies, internal control systems,
material transactions, appointment of directors and other
significant operational, financial and legal compliance matters.
The Board delegates the authority to manage the daily affairs of
the Group to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the senior management
on behalf of the Group.
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Specifically in relation to corporate governance function, the
Board is responsible for the corporate governance function as a
whole, and establishes an internal control group to be
responsible for the specific operation. During the reporting period
and up to the date of this report, the Board had performed the
following duties:

1. Developing and reviewing relevant corporate governance
policy and practice of the Company;

2. Reviewing and inspecting continuous professional
development and training of Directors and senior
management;

3. Reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the
Company being in compliance with the statutory and other
regulatory provisions;

4. Developing, reviewing and checking code and provision of
conducts applicable to the Directors and employees; and

5. Reviewing that the Company being in compliance with the
CG Code and corporate governance reporting requirements.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group as well as the advice from
and services provided by the company secretary, if and when
required, with a view to ensure that the procedures are in
compliance and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

There are established procedures for Directors upon reasonable
request, to seek independent advice in appropriate
circumstances for them to discharge their duties and
responsibilities, at the Company’s expenses.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for the
Directors and the senior management of the Group to indemnify
their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Composition

The Board currently comprises 2 executive Directors and 3
independent non-executive Directors from different businesses
and professional fields. The Directors, including independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a balance of valuable and
diversified businesses and professional expertises, experiences
and independent judgment to the Board for its efficient and
effective management of the Group’s business.

The Board during the year and up to the date of this report has
comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Zheng Juhua — Chairman

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen — Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary
Mr. Chen Shaohua (Resigned on 30 September 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Man Kwok Leung — Chairman of Nomination Committee
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter — Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth — Chairman of Audit Committee

The composition of the Board reflects a diverse yet balanced set
of skills and experience which is essential for effective leadership
of the Company. All the Board members possess strong
professional expertise, extensive experience in corporate
management as well as sharp commercial acumen. Biographic
details of Directors are disclosed in the “Biographical Details of
Directors” section of the Report of the Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
held by different persons for purpose of maintaining
independence and a more balanced basis for judgments and
decisions. The key role of the Chairman is to provide leadership
to the Board. In performing her duties, the Chairman shall ensure
that the Board functions effectively in the discharge of its
responsibilities. The Chairman also has the responsibility of
taking the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests
of the Company and the Group.

The key role of the CEO is to be responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Company and business of
the Group. The duties of the CEO mainly include:

o providing leadership and supervising the effective
management of the Company;

o monitoring and controlling the financial and operational
performance of various divisions; and

. implementing the strategy and policies adopted by the
Company, setting and implementing objectives and
development plans.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, of whom Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth has appropriate
professional qualifications and related experiences in financial
matters.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of their independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of 1
year which could be terminated by either party giving to the
other not less than 1 month’s written notice.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s bye-laws. The
Company has established a nomination committee to assist the
Board for reviewing its composition, monitoring the appointment
and independence, where applicable, of Directors, and identifying
suitable and qualified individuals to become board members
where necessary.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, any director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not greater than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation but shall be eligible for re-election,
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. The directors (including those
appointed for a special term) to retire in every year shall be those
who have been longest in office since their last election but as
between persons who became directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves)
be determined by lot. Any Director appointed by the Directors
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development
for Directors

Each newly appointed director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has proper
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary.

The Directors are continuously updated on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by them.

The Directors are committed to comply with Code Provision A.6.5
of CG Code on directors’ training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board will be informed and relevant.

According to the records provided by the Directors to the
Company pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities during the year under review. In addition to their own
participation in professional training, relevant training and reading
materials was provided to the Directors by the Company in the
year to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant.

All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the business
and market changes and the Company’s performance, position
and prospectus to enable the Board as a whole and each Director
to discharge their duties.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diversed Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
talents, skills, experience, independence and knowledge. The
Company will also take into consideration its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Directors’ Liabilities Insurance

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in
respect of potential legal actions against the Directors arising out
of corporate activities of the Group pursuant to Code Provision
A.1.8 of the CG Code. Such directors’ liability insurance will be
reviewed and renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2015, no claim has been
made against the Directors.

Remuneration of Directors

Non-executive Directors are paid fees generally in line with
market practice and taking into consideration the responsibilities
and time spent by Non-executive Directors on the Company’s
affairs. The remuneration of Executive Directors is determined by
the chairman of the Board in consultation with the Remuneration
Committee after taking into consideration market trends and
responsibilities and performance of the individual with a view to
provide attractive reward to and retain high performing
individuals.

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Group's financial statements. The financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2015 have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and applicable Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires, they
are not aware of any material uncertainty relating to events of
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor, Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A.
Limited, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
4310 44.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and Board activities are
efficiently and effectively conducted. These objectives are
achieved through adherence to proper Board processes and the
timely preparation and dissemination to Directors comprehensive
meeting agendas and papers. Minutes of all Board meetings and
Board Committees are prepared and maintained by the Company
Secretary to record in sufficient details the matters considered
and decisions reached by the Board or Committee, including any
concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any Director. All
draft and final minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees are sent to Directors and Committee members
respectively for comments and records and are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and that it takes
these into consideration when making decisions for the Group.
From time to time, he organises seminars on specific topics of
significance and interest and disseminate reference materials to
the Directors for their information.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group's compliance with all obligations of the Listing Rules and
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and despatch of annual
reports and interim reports within the time limits laid down in the
Listing Rules, the timely dissemination to shareholders and the
market of information relating to the Group.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings in the
Group’s securities, connected transactions and inside information
and ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in the
annual report of the Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company. Whilst the Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman, all members of the Board have access to the advice
and service of the Company Secretary. Mr. Chan Chi Yuen has
been appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company since
June 2011 and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group's affairs.
In response to specific enquiries made, the Company Secretary
confirmed that he has complied with all the required
gualifications, experience and training requirements of the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Group.
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings while reasonable notice is
generally given for other Board meetings.

For committee meetings, notices are served in accordance with
the required notice period stated in the relevant terms of
reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are normally sent to all Directors before
each Board meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Group and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to senior management whenever necessary.

Apart from the regular board meetings, the Board met on other
occasions from time to time when a board-level decision on a
particular matter was required.

Guidelines are in place which stipulate that any material matter
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or Director will be dealt with at a duly convened Board meeting.
The Company'’s bye-laws also contain provisions stipulating the
procedures according to which any material matters involving
conflict of interests are to be approved at Board meeting.

Minutes of all Board meetings, recording sufficient details of
matters considered and decisions reached, are kept by the
secretary of the meetings, and are open for inspection by the
Directors.
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During the year, 23 Board meetings and 3 general meetings were
held and the individual attendance of each Director is set out
below:

FRAKBITBREFELRLIRNERAE
BEESZEBIHFEERMT -

Meetings Attended/Meetings Held
EHEZEE CRIT2E8HE

Directors General Meeting Board Meeting
2= BRRAE EEggs
Ms. Zheng Juhua B+ 3/3 23/23
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PRAERS A 3/3 23/23
Mr. Chen Shaohua BRAEESE A
(Resigned on 30 September 2014) (RZZE—m5F

NA=+THEE) 1/3 12/23
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SERE A 3/3 23/23
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter AT k4 2/3 21/23
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth ZELE 1/3 23/23
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZET
The Board has established 3 committees, namely the audit ZEZF@PKV=AZ8€  HiAEXRELZEE

committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) for overseeing particular aspects
of the Group’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority of the members of each Board committees are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses.
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises the following independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman)
Mr. Man Kwok Leung
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

The Audit Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth, who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
which lay down clearly its authority and duties, which include the
maintaining of an appropriate relationship with independent
auditor, review of financial information and monitoring the
financial reporting system and internal control procedures.

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

(@ To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Group's staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or auditor;

(b) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures;

(c)  To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectively and the effectiveness of the audit; and

(d) To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of management, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of external auditor.
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The Audit Committee performed the work during the year
includes the followings:

o reviewed the annual and interim reports of the Company as
to whether they are in compliance with the accounting
standards and relevant requirements in relation to financial
reporting under the Listing Rules and other laws;

J reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group and approved the internal control review manual
of the Group; and

o reviewed the Group’s accounting principles and practices,
financial reporting and statutory compliance matters.

During the year, the Audit Committee convened 2 meetings.
Members and their attendance are as follows:
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Director Name Attendance
EEHA HER
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman) FEWEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BEBREAE 2/2
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIALCKE 2/2

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Chairman)
Mr. Man Kwok Leung
Mr. Chi Chi Hung

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
followings:

(@ To review, recommend and approve the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and the senior management;

(b)y To review, recommend and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

(c) To review, recommend and approve the compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and
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To establish transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

The Remuneration Committee performed the work during the
year includes the followings:

reviewed the remuneration policy for the Directors and
senior management;

reviewed and approved the remuneration package of each
Director and the company secretary including bonus
payment, pension right and compensation payable; and

approved the forms of the service agreement for each
executive Director and the appointment letter for each
independent non-executive Director.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee convened 2
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meeting. Members and their attendance are as follows: MEEERAIAT

Director Name Attendance
EEgE HER
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Chairman) RIACEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BERLE A 2/2
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth ESViid e 2/2
Nomination Committee REZEEE

The Nomination Committee comprises the Chairman and the REZEECHARRFERERIATBILIERITE
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely EB4HK - P HIAE

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Chairman) EBRBRLEE(EE)

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth ZEME A

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIBCEAE

Ms. Zheng Juhua BEgIE i+
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the
followings:

(@ To review the criteria and procedures of selection of
directors and senior management members, and provide
suggestions;

(b)  To conduct extensive search for qualified candidates of
directors and senior management; and

(c) To assess the candidates for directors and senior
management and provide the relevant recommendations.

Nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the Nomination Committee include the followings:

o assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors;

J in considering the nomination of new directors, the
Nomination Committee will take into account the
qualification, ability, still, knowledge, working experience,
leadership and professional ethics of the individual;

o identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; and

o where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an
individual as an independent non-executive director at the
general meeting, it should set out in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting why the
Nomination Committee believes the individual should be
elected and the reasons why the Nomination Committee
considers the individual to be independent.

During the year, the Nomination Committee convened 1 meeting.
Members and their attendance are as follows:
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Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Chairman) BEREE(XE) 11
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FREMEE 11
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIBCRAE 1
Ms. Zheng Juhua BB+ 171
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its own code regarding securities transactions by
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and employees of
the Group who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company. All the Directors
have confirmed their compliance with the codes throughout the
year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, recognizing its overall responsibility in ensuring the
system of internal controls of the Company and in reviewing its
effectiveness, is committed to implementing an effective and
sound internal control system to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the assets of the Group. Procedures have been
designed to safeguard assets against unauthorized used or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with
applicable law, rules and regulations. The procedures provide a
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that material untrue
statements or losses are prevented, potential interruption of the
Group’s management system is detected, and risks existing in
the course of arriving at the Group’s objectives are properly
managed.

During the year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, has
been assessing and improving the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control system continuously, which covers financial,
operational, and compliance controls as well as risk management
function, in order to cope with the changing business
environment.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") and Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A.
Limited (“Lau & Au Yeung”) have been appointed as the
Company'’s external auditors since 2003.

On 15 April 2013, PwC resigned as one of the joint auditors.
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting on 3 May 2013, Lau &
Au Yeung, being the other joint auditors, has been appointed as
the auditor.

The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature and service
charges of the non-audit services to be performed by Lau & Au
Yeung and considered that such services have no adverse effect
on the independence of their audit works.
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A summary of audit services provided by the external auditor for
the year and their corresponding remunerations is as follows:

RAER - SNERBETRG Y BRREHE
REARBHSMT -

Nature of services Amount
R HEE NEE
HK$'000
FHET
Audit services for the year ended 31 March 2015
BHE_ZT—AF=-A=1+—BHLEFEZEZRBE 430
Non-audit services
IEEIZARTE 50

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company may submit a written requisition to the
Company to convene a special general meeting. The requisition
must state the purpose of the meeting, and must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company or the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

If the Directors do not proceed duly to convene a special general
meeting within twenty-one days from the deposit of the
requisition, then the requisitionists (or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them) may
themselves convene a meeting provided it is held within three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at the
meeting, or not less than one hundred Shareholders of the
Company, may submit to the Company a written request (a) to
give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting or (b) to
circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

A copy of such written request signed by the requisitionists must
be deposited at the registered office of the Company or the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong not less
than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or one week before the meeting
in the case of any other requisition.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board recognizes the importance of continuing
communications with the Company’s shareholders and investors,
and maintains ongoing dialogues with them through various
channels. The primary communication channel between the
Company and its shareholders is through the publication of its
interim and annual reports.

The Company's registrars serve the shareholders with respect to
all share registration matters.

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Board
members and management of the Company are available to
answer shareholders’ questions and explain the procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll, if necessary. Any relevant
information and documents on proposed resolutions are
normally sent to all shareholders at least 21 clear days before the
annual general meeting.

All shareholders’ communications, including interim and annual
reports, announcements and press releases are available on the
Company’s website at www.noblecentury.hk. The latest business
developments and core strategies of the Company can also be
found on the website, keeping the communications with
investors open and transparent.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public who may contact the Company by
phone on (852) 2598 9868 during normal business hours, by fax
at (852) 2598 9878 or by e-mail at info@noblecentury.hk.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there had not been any
changes in the Company's constitutional documents.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holdings company. The Company,
through its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in vessel chartering, trading, money lending and finance
leasing.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments is
set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are
set forth in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 45 to 46.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014 Nil).

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company are set forth in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set forth in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 2 September 2013 and the
Stock Exchange granting approval of the listing of and permission
to deal in the shares to be issued under the share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) on 3 September 2013, the Company
adopted the Share Option Scheme in replacement of a share
option scheme adopted on 25 March 2003 which had been
expired on 24 March 2013.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from 2 September 2013, unless otherwise terminated.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible and effective means of incentivizing,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the directors, employees and other participants of the
Company and the Group.
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The exercise price, vesting period, exercisable period and the
number of shares subject to each option will be determined by
the Board at the time of grant. No option has been granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption to
the date of this report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2015, the aggregate amount of distributable reserves
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$36.4 million
(2014: 50.9 million).

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Company and the Group as at 31
March 2015 are set out in notes 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 128.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Zheng Juhua

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen

Mr. Chen Shaohua (Resigned on 30 September 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Man Kwok Leung

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws and
to comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan
Chi Yuen and Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Other than the transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at 31 March 2015 or at any time during the year then ended.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year had the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any
contract of significance for the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The transactions as set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements were connected transactions which were
exempt from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As far as the transactions set out in note 36(c) to the consolidated
financial statements are concerned, the remuneration of the
Directors as determined pursuant to the service contracts/letters
of appointment entered into between the Directors and the
Group were connected transactions which were exempt from
any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors was considered to have interests in the
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant
to the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

At 31 March 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) (a) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (b) which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or (c) which were required, pursuant to the Code of
Practice for Securities Transaction by Directors and Designated
Employees adopted by the Company, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were are follows:

Directors’ interest in the Company:

0

EENSRITHRAERABRE

RIZE-—RAF=ZA=1+—8 ARAEELF
FITHABAREZ B ZHEARRNAARE
REEE (EEREHF BRI ([F5 RS
BRI EXVER) 2B fn - MR REST
A (@) RBEEZRHPEERGIZXVES7 R85
MAMGARE LB (BERERE S
BRPIBRGXRERASKEFER 2
FokR) + S0 IRERE 7 M E R 5% 352 15
AR AZIGH A E LM R OBRBEARTF
RACEERIEERBETERRDZERT
AIAHEARAR R TZ AgORBIAT

EERAQF 2R :

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shares
BAEHE

Name of director
BEENR

shareholding
REHLESLE H2

Capacity

Ms. Zheng Juhua
by e

Long position

142,400,000 shares (Note)
e

142,400,000 B& % 15 (Pt &%)

Note: 142,400,000 shares were held by Superb Smart Limited, a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Zheng Juhua.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company was interested, or
was deemed to be interested in the long and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations, which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange or recorded in
the register as aforesaid.

42.18%  Beneficial owner and interest
of a controlled company

ERBEA ARZERA L

BFEE : 142,400,000 k& D R BHRIELX T2 EREm
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the “Share Option Scheme” section on page
31 to 32 in this annual report and note 24(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable a Director to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2015, so far as it is known by or otherwise
notified by any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
the particulars of the corporations or persons who had 5% or
more interests in the following long positions in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or were entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, 10% or more of the voting power at any
general meeting of the Company (the “Voting Entitlements”) (i.e.
within the meaning of substantial shareholders of the Listing
Rules) were as follows:

Name of substantial
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fRE BB MR E 240 TRES  RATHK
HAFAAT BT 8 2 B 6 19 (AR Bk R AL B BT SZAE )
T BEEFAREBARNR RS TMEAME
ABEZ D ESFMEES -

TERREDKE

R-ZZE—RAF=ZA=1—H  BXAQREMAE
EEARRITBRAEMBARBERAEG - BT
FIRIERE 5 M BIGRPIFE B IREFENERC
i P AC Sk 2 B D M ABRAR (D 2 IF B P B 5%
SOA bR - HAEARFEMBRRAS LARE
TTEE IR B 10% A LR FHE([ xRS ) (R
EHRMATERRAEEE) CRRHALT
ZEIFMT

Approximate
percentage of

shareholder Number of shares shareholding Capacity
TERFEHE BB R EE RESENEIE B2
Superb Smart Limited Long position 42.18%  Beneficial owner
142,400,000 shares (Note) EnlEA
HE
142,400,000 A% A& 13 (P 3% )
Ms. Zheng Juhua Long position 42.18% Interest of controlled
B+ 142,400,000 shares (Note) corporations
) RN

142,400,000 PR 17 (BT 5EF)

Note: 142,400,000 shares were held by Superb Smart Limited, a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Zheng Juhua.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other corporations or person who, as at 31 March 2015, had the
Voting Entitlements or any interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

M3k - 142,400,000 kRO B BHEZ T2 ERERHE
& 2 Superb Smart Limited 34

B ENFIREEN  EEUTANBEEMEM
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Zheng Juhua, aged 43, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company since April
2011. Ms. Zheng conducts a property rental and investment
business in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China. She has
over ten years of experience in securities investment in Hong
Kong. She is the sole beneficial owner of Superb Smart Limited, a
substantial and controlling shareholder of the Company which
holds approximately 42.18% of the issued share capital. She has
not held any directorships in the last three years in any other
public company the securities of which are listed on the
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, aged 48, holds a bachelor degree with
honours in Business Administration and a master of science
degree in Corporate Governance and Directorship. He is a fellow
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and is an
associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He is a practicing certified public accountant and has
extensive experience in financial management, corporate finance
and corporate governance.

Mr. Chan was appointed to the Board as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer in June 2011. He is currently an
executive director of South East Group Limited (Stock code: 726),
Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited (stock code: 707) and e-Kong
Group Limited (stock code: 524). He is also an independent non-
executive director of Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited (Stock
code: 351), REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited (formerly
known as China Gamma Group Limited) (Stock code: 164), Jun
Yang Solar Power Investments Limited (Stock code: 397), Media
Asia Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8075), U-RIGHT
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 627) and New Times
Energy Corporation Limited (Stock code: 166) (redesignated from
non-executive director with effect from 18 May 2012). He was an
executive director of Kong Sun Holdings Limited (Stock code: 295)
from February 2007 to November 2009 and from December 2011
to September 2013, and an independent non-executive director
of China Sandi Holdings Limited (Stock code: 910) from
September 2009 to July 2014.
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Mr. Chen Shaohua, aged 53, has extensive management
experience in The People’s Republic of China. He has over ten
years' experience in car and spare parts trading business in Hong
Kong. He has not held any directorships in the last three years in
any public company the securities of which are listed on the
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. He was appointed to
the Board as executive Director in June 2011 and resigned on 30
September 2014.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Man Kwok Leung, aged 68, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Nomination
committee of the Company. He is a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong and a civil celebrant of marriages. Mr. Man has
extensive experience in the legal practice and was appointed by
Xinhua News Agency as a district advisor between 1995 and
1997. He is currently a director of Apleichau Kai Fong Primary
School, the deputy chairman of Apleichau Kai Fong Welfare
Association, the secretary of Apleichau Promotion of Tourism
Association and the honorary legal advisor of Junior Police
Officers’ Association. Mr. Man is not related to any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of
the Company.

Mr. Man is currently an independent non-executive director of
Guocang Group Limited (stock code: 559). He was an
independent non-executive director of Kong Sun Holdings Limited
(stock code: 295) from June 2009 to September 2014, KuangChi
Science Limited (formerly known as Climax International
Company Limited) (stock code: 439) from May 2008 to August
2014 and Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group
Limited (stock code: 8085) from November 2009 to September
2012.

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter, aged 64, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since April 2011. He has over 28
years of experience in real estate and financial services
industries. Mr. Yu has a Bachelor Degree in Management from
Youngstown State University in Ohio, the United States and a
Master of Science Degree in Financial Services from American
College in Pennsylvania, the United States. Mr. Yu is a member of
the Certified Commercial Investment Member Institute and was
the first Chinese-American elected to the board of the San
Francisco Association of Realtors. Mr. Yu worked in Pacific Union
Real Estate Company in the United States between 1980 and
1995 and held senior positions in MetLife and New York Life
Insurance Company in managing Asian customers in North
America. Mr. Yu is not related to any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders the
Company.

BRAOELRLE 5358 RMPEARKMBE RS
BEELR  YNBBAELRTHHEIEH
BEBTHER - NBE=FH  RABNE
FEBABIBIIELME LN ZEFMARAT]
BECFNESERE - BN _T——FARE
ERRAERVMTEETIN _T-OFAA=T
B&HE

BYEHITES

BERRE 685 REVIFNTESERAR
AREZEEIE - RAB BT ELENM KR
BRERA RS ERRTHERR X BR
—NANAFE-NNELFEEHRELZ I AR
EEM - BIRAWHIME T ERRE - ISHIM
EyREMNERIER - BRMKERESWE R
EREERBEABERBERER - 8L
BEARNBENES SRAEEBRTIERRK
PR R AT AR AR o

BRERSEREBRER QA (MR :
559) 2B IFHITES - REN_TTNFAX
AZ-Z-—NFAAHETLERAERQF
(BRI R5E - 295) 2 B FFHITEE K- F
ZENFHRAZE_Z-OF\ALERBZREER
RAR (AHRFEERERAF) (RO
439) ZBUFHTES AR _ZTFTNF+—A
BT FNALERBLERRERTEE
BR AT (B in 5% - 8085) 2 BILIEHATITE
=o

RACKRE 645 BZTE——FEARDE
BYENTEERARRFNEZESEE -
REMWERCRRBEREBB2BFLR -
7R 5E E 4% A 3 B Z )1 Youngstown State
University 2 BB 2+ B REBE S AETDR
M American College 7 & B AR 75 IRIE - 2L ©
REERERTMEXREABREXE I
AEMEENMA=SETHESHEERTSZE
BEA - REER-NNEFE-NNLAFH
# 3 H Pacific Union Real Estate Company T
1B WEEBEERABE ASRB DR LA
WASRBRARETER  AETERIEEMNZ
THEEP «c RALABEXQRENES - T
BEREEREIITREERETMEER -



Annual Report 2015 e 2015 FF R

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu is currently an executive director of Far East Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 36) and an independent non-
executive director of China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code:
910) and Kingston Financial Group Limited (stock code: 1031). He
was an executive director of Kong Sun Holdings Limited (stock
code: 295) from August 2008 to September 2014 and an
independent non-executive director of GET Holdings Limited
(formerly known as M Dream Inworld Limited) (stock code: 8100)
during the period from July 2010 to January 2014.

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, aged 46, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company since April 2011. He has over 20 years of
experience in accounting and financial control area. He holds a
Bachelor of Accountancy Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in
the United Kingdom. Mr. Chi is not related to any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. Chiis currently an executive director of e-Kong Group Limited
(stock code:524), Ceneric (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 542) and
Guocang Group Limited (stock code: 559) and a non-executive
director of China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code: 910)
(redesignated from executive director with effect from 31 January
2015) and an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (stock code: 8085),
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148), China
Natural Investment Company Limited (stock code: 8250), Perfect
Shape (PRC) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1830) and L'sea
Resources International Holdings Limited (stock code: 195). He
was an executive director of GET Holdings Limited (formerly
known as M Dream Inworld Limited) (stock code: 8100) from July
2010 to June 2014 and an independent non-executive director of
Everchina International Holdings Company Limited (formerly
known as Interchina Holdings Company Limited) (stock code: 202)
from October 2011 to August 2012.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, approximately 95% (2014: 100%) and 91% (2014
40%) of the Group's turnover was attributable to the five largest
customers and the largest customer respectively.

During the year, approximately 98% (2014: 81.4%) and 44% (2014
36.1%) of the Group’s purchases were attributable to the five
largest suppliers and the largest supplier respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers above at any time during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the law of
Bermuda or the Company’s bye-laws in respect of the Company’s
share capital.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s shares during the year ended 31 March 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 14 to 29 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the sufficiency of public float
requirement under the Listing Rules at any time during the year
and as at the date of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising three independent non-
executive directors, has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Lau
& Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Zheng Juhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Noble
Century Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 126,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2015, and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015

Franklin, Lau Shiu Wai
Practising Certificate number: P01886
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—F—AF=HA=+—HILF/Z

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FH&xT BT
Revenue WA 5 322,056 12,943
Cost of sales SHE KA 7 (312,098) (19,308)
Gross profit/(10ss) EH,7(38) 9,958 (6,365)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHBAR AW 33 - 15,242
Other income E A 6 773 -
Gain on changes in fair value of RIEEEREQANE
held-for-trading investments o)l 14,300 -
Administrative expenses 1TEE 7 (16,215) (11,945)
Operating profit/(10ss) e RN, (EE) 8,816 (3,068)
Finance costs BB A A 8 - (419)
Profit/(loss) before taxation B ATE A (E18) 8,816 (3,487)
Taxation charge MELH 9 (835) —
Profit/(loss) for the year REE R, (FE) 7,981 (3,487)
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2wz
Items that may be reclassified PEZ RIREERT D IEE
subsequently to profit or l0ss: BmfiyIEE
— exchange differences arising on —REELNELZER
translation (1,645) =
Total comprehensive income/(10ss) FEAE2ERES(E8)
for the year 6,336 (3,487)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=F—AF=HA=+—HILFZ

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff5E FET FHT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: LA R A+ FEIEEE
wmA, (EE) -
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIESP N 7,983 (3,487)
Non-controlling interests IR i (2) =
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEERF, () 7,981 (3,487)
Total comprehensive income/(10ss) ITALTREEE
for the year attributable to: wmeEmEmkes (ER)
Owners of the Company AREFRA A 6,338 (3,487)
Non-controlling interests e (2) =
Total comprehensive income/(10ss) FERZERZ(ER)
for the year 6,336 (3,487)
Restated
=5
Basic and diluted earnings/(losses) #REXRE#ES
per share BR(&8) 11 HK2.37 cents  HK(3.55) cents
2.37 %Al (3.55) /811
Dividends =k 10 - _

The notes on pages 52 to 126 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 126 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2015 and were

signed on its behalf.

HEGREMBERREBHNEZE126 H 2

&t e

FENFBE1EZHEAMBRE2EN_-F

=

—HAERNAZTHNEREZTSREARER



Annual Report 2015 e 2015 FF R

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
o EE AR

Asat31March2015 R-F—AF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E—RF —E—mF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FExT BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Plant and equipment B ] 14 40,132 37,835
Goodwill EEs 16 1,000 -
Finance lease payment receivables FEY b B FE E A 17 26,223 =
67,355 37,835
Current assets REEE
Inventories =E 18 1,129 2,061
Trade receivable FE U BR R 19 - 1,385
Deposits, prepayments and e BAFIER
other receivables H A pE U RIR 20 71,114 3,040
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBEKRE 21 33,900 =
Finance lease payment receivables el & T & RIE 17 43,624 -
Unsecured loan receivables EEAERER 22 16,222 =
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTHET 23 118,659 163,032
284,648 169,518
Total assets BEHAE 352,003 207,353
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves EARR HE
Share capital RE 2R 24 33,760 8,440
Reserves e 25 181,585 51,772
Total equity attributable to ZAYNGIECFEDN:- X
owners of the Company 215,345 60,212
Non-controlling interest e 280 =
Total equity REREE 215,625 60,212

47
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Asat31March2015 R-ZE—AF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E—RF —E—mF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET BT
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FETER IR 26 5,944 3,600
Accruals, other payables and FEZHER - EMfE
deposit received FIEREYIES 27 129,398 1,503
Amount due to a related company FEA — AR A R 5K IE 28 - 41
Amount due to a director Bt — R EENIE 29 21 756
Amount due to non-controlling interest  fE{T IEFE IR fE RS IR 30 180 -
Proceeds from rights issue AR 1S IR 31 - 141,241
Tax payable FEI IR 835 -
Totalliabilities  #8® 136378 147,141
Total equity and liabilities BN A EAE 352,003 207,353
Net current assets RENEERE 148,270 22,377
Total assets less current liabilities ZEELABRABERS 215,625 60,212
Zheng Juhua Chan Chi Yuen
BREHTE [ &R
Director Director
2 EFE
The notes on pages 52 to 126 are an integral part of these HWEHEGAMBREBSENRESE 126 B 2
consolidated financial statements. &

The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 126 were R FASE 126 B 2 A BHRERERN ==
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2015 and were —REXNA -+ BEES SR ELIEES

signed on its behalf. & -
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BALANCE SHEET
¥ AR

Asat31March2015 R-F—AF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E—A0F —=—mEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 F&T FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment B 14 2,841 =
Interests in subsidiaries NG 15 166,115 38,271
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 168,956 38271
Current assets RENEE
Deposits, prepayments and e BAFIER
other receivables H A fE U GRIB 20 1,662 2,124
Held-for-trading investments BIFEBRKRE 21 33,900 -
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTER 23 7,046 161,575
o A2608 163,699
Total assets EEHE 211,564 201,970
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital A&z 24 33,760 8,440
Reserves EE 25 176,734 50,867
Total equity A 210,494 59,307
LIABILITIES aE 49
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals, other payables FEET B - HAER
and deposit received FIE KRB WIR S 27 1,065 666
Amount due to a director EN—ZEE=5IE 29 5 756
Proceeds from rights issue AR PS8 IR 31 - 141,241
1070 142663
Total equity and liabilities ERRAERE 211,564 201,970
Net current assets REEEZFE 41,538 21,036
Total assets less current liabilities ZEZAEBERABER 210,494 59,307
Zheng Juhua Chan Chi Yuen
B TE BRE=R
Director Director
e EE

HEGEMBERREBHNEZE126 HZH

o

The notes on pages 52 to 126 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

B

The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 126 were HRFISE 126 B 2 G A BREREN - Z
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2015 and were —HFNA- TN BEESSZETIRER
signed on its behalf. °

i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

i e RS S ) o

For the year ended 31 March 2015 # % — =

—AFE=A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company Attributable to non-controlling interests
KA AR FERBREL
Share-
based
(Accumulated compensation
losses)/ reserve  Share of net
Retained HRHREE  assetsofa
Share Share  Contributed  Exchange eamings ZffkfE  subsidiary
capital premium surplus reseve (Rif#58)/  Sub-total HKS000  FEEHEAR Sub-total Total
e RAEE Razh B REEF Mt TEn FEE it @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 (Note) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT Tan T T T L (GiE3) T T T
At 1 April 2013 RZZ-Z4MmA-H 36,200 52333 = = (57,529) 31,004 = = = 31,004
Comprehensive loss 2EFR
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (3487) (3487 - - - (3487)
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS
Placing of new shares REFRH 6,000 27,60 - - - 33600 - - - 33,600
Transaction costs attributable BTHiRi Bl
o issue of new shares RPRA = (905) = S = (905) = - = (905)
Capital reduction FRAEL (33,760) - 33760 - - - - - - -
Share premium cancellation RipE B - (79,028) 79028 - - - - - - -
Transfer o set-off accumulated BRIEHZG
losses 5| = = (61,730) = 61730 - - - - -
At31 March 2014 RZZ-MF
=A=t-H 8,440 = 51,08 = 714 60212 - - - 60212
At1 April 2014 RZZ-REMA-A 8,440 = 51,08 = 714 60212 - - - 60212
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year RERET = = - - 7983 7983 - @ @ 7981
Other comprehensive income Ht2ERA
Exchange difference on tranglation BEENEHAE
of financial statements of foreign BrrERER
operations - - - (1,645) - (1,645 - - - (1,645)
Recognition of equity-settled R ENRA
share-based payment BREZRR - - - - - - 22 - 2%2 22
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS
Issue of rights shares Btk 8,440 143480 - - - 151,920 - - - 151920
Issue of bonus shares TR 16,830 - (16,880) = = = = = = =
Transaction costs attributable EARAER
to isstie of new shares RPRA = (3125) = S = (3,125) = = = (3125)
Contribution from non-controlling FirRERTE
interests - - - - - - - 20 20 20
At31March 2015 RZE-1%F
=h=t+-H 33760 140,355 34178 (1,645) 8697 215,345 262 18 280 215,625
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2015, a subsidiary of the Company  Kii - R=ZE—RF=A=+—0  AQ2@— B2

granted an option to an employee to subscribe for upto 5% equity
interest of that subsidiary at a price calculated based on the net assets
value of the subsidiary as at the date the option is exercised. The
option is vested on 1 October 2015 and is exercisable up to the
termination of services of the employee to the subsidiary.

The notes on pages 52 to 126 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

i+ e
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AR T — B ESBREAZIE A R R E AR ET
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
i Bl AT BE R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—F—AF=HA=+—HILF/Z

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—mF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B FExT FET
Cash flows from operating activities K& FEHERE
Net cash used in operations KEXRFTAE %5 350) (24,677) (18,684)
Net cash used in operating activities E&ZEBAAREZFE (24677) | (18,684)
Cash flows from investing activities ®REZEHHRLSHKRE
Purchase of held-for-trading BERIEEERE
investments (19,600) -
Purchase of plant and equipment NG S (4,486) (38,385)
Net cash inflow on disposal of HE—RHBARZ
a subsidiary BemAFEE 3 - 38,838
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WEE—MB AR Z
a subsidiary WML FRE 32 (1,000) =
Interest received B UF B 16 =

Net cash (used in)/generated from RETE (FTH), s

_investingactivites ReF® ! (25,0700 453
Cash flows from financing activities ®EZEZEHHRLSHKRE

Proceeds from placing of new shares e & #T AR (0 FT 1S 3R - 33,600
Proceeds from rights issue received %Euﬁlﬁ*éﬁﬁi\ﬂiﬁﬁ?%fklﬁ

in advance - 141,241
Proceeds from rights issue BT FTS RE 10,679 -
Shares issue costs f& (DB 1 TR AN (3,125) (905)
Increase in amount due to a former BN —ZRIZEERE

director #0 - 8,721
Decrease in amount due to a director FEN—RESZRIERD (735) (13,502)
Capital contribution from R T &

non-controlling interests 200 =

Net cash generated from financing BMEEE B
activities BHE&EEE 7,019 169,155

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and EE%&L%%%EIE B

cash equivalents W), 1 hnEAE (42,728) 150,924
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E%ﬂzfﬁﬁﬁiﬁi

of the year Z{ETEH 163,032 12,108
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREF) 2 FEE

changes, net (1,645) -

Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZEEREE
of the year Z@EIER 23 118,659 163,032

The notes on pages 52 to 126 are an integral part of these |HEGAMBREBLSENREL2E 126 B 2 M
consolidated financial statements. 7F o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 T 5 8 0 B i

GENERAL INFORMATION

Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company’s registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton II, Bermuda. The principal
place of business in Hong Kong is situated at Suite 1402,
14/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holdings. The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) are principally engaged in vessel chartering,
trading, money lending and finance leasing.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2015.

—RER
CIRRERRBRAR(ARA] B—
%FEELE%&4ZE@®ﬂ'%§
BHMARSFAERAR ([HRAT]) 1R
irh N &) M == Bz 7 Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton I,
Bermuda - &&= *”%ﬂt%ﬁi?%éi}%
BB 265 E A AE 141 1402 F

RRABELEXBRIEEER - AR
HKTE A T(Hﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁlﬁi%{fﬁ%@]’u
pEE 25 EERBEHEE -

BRAREBIN ZEEREPBHRERNAE
(BT 2% - ZFHEAMBRRD
R-E-—AFAA-tHhAEESSH
HETIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance relating to the
preparation of consolidated financial statements,
which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 32, in accordance
with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622, “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in
Sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for held-for-trading investments, which have been
measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.

Bas 1 BB e M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok B U5 R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

@)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group:

The following new standards and amendments
to standards are mandatory for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1 April 2014 but do
not have a material impact on the Group:

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and  Investment Entities
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKAS 36 (Amendments) Impairment of Asset —
Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(FRIC)-Int 21 Levies

2 TEETHEHME @)

2.1 RBEEEE)
(@) AEEEBERABZH LEE
TR

TBUHTRT R B S RI 2 1E
AR -—ZE—NENA—HRA
W2 B B R 58 Il R
B EBEHAKRETESENY
£ .

BEUHREENZ 0% RARR
BEMHREEN
FFREEEHE
EPACHEY)

BREHENENE  £RIA: 2f-

(BA1%) HHERAER
SEAECET
BRENENENE  ARAEER-
() FEBEEL
REEEZBE
BROEREYY  (IATAEER
(BA1%) Hneitiz
i PacH)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fos B U 05 A Wik

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

()

The following new, revised or amended
standards and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2014 and have not been early
adopted.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
(Amendments) between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?
Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception?

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)  Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Disclosure Initiative?

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable
(Amendments) Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation?
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
(Amendments)
HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions’
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate

Annual Improvements
Projects

Annual Improvements
Projects

Annual Improvements
Projects

Financial Statements?
Annual Improvements
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle!
Annual Improvements
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle!
Annual Improvements
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 July 2014.

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2018.

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of related impact of adopting the
above new, revised or amended standards and
interpretations to the Group. The Group is not
yet in a position to state whether substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
presentation of the consolidated financial
statements will be resulted.

2 FESHERBE®)
2.1 RBEEEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 1 BB e B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and all
of its subsidiaries made up to 31 March. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the group has control. The
group controls an entity when the group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(@  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’'s net
assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@)

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date, any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income
Statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fos B U 05 A Wik

2 FESTHEEME®)

2.2 HBAT (&)
22148 (&)

@

BB (&)
A B W R P AR I E A
SHA

i 5 %5 & 0F o P& B
17 WEHT TR
WHLHE 5 A U hE B A as
ZEEEREERNR
REEHMFTERALEN
FAAEMELNEMRE
RIBa PR

ANER B 2R T kA
REBEREERZEAL
AEER - HE s —E
EF‘E%EZY?XM{E
AREREZE  BiZ
REBSTHERE 395
Z%E)E ERAEBRNK
Emermk=EE - o
HAERZ  AREH
HEFE MERBLE
HERtE=ALR o

HEARE KBS
Z AT o] SEFE AR A 25 DA I
WHLIE I3 2 (] B X
sAERBEN R ER
3B IR P URRE A] R0
BERNENEE 5
REE - REREBEM
5 ARREEE B
FERR 2 IR 4% i ot B2 AT
BRA 2w BEE
KA BB ARFE
ENQRE ZE=8E
BRERSERDER -




NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED o {ZImR &R AR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 T 5 8 0 B i

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@)

b)

©

Business combinations (Continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the group’s accounting
policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss of
control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary in their
capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying amount of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investment if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board
of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

24

Foreign currency translation

(@

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group'’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars
("HK$") which is the Company's functional and
the Group's presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 T 5 8 0 B i

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

— income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average
exchange rates; and

— all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translate at the closing rate. Exchange
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in the
equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are reattributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposal (that
is, reductions in the group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the group losing significant influence or joint
control) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 T 5 8 0 B i

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHERBE®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Plant and equipment 25 RiERSEM

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow
to the Group and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Vessel 10-20 years
Leasehold improvement 3years

When a vessel is acquired, the costs of major
components which are usually replaced or renewed
at the next dry-docking are identified and depreciated
over the period to the next estimated dry-docking
date. Costs incurred on subsequent dry-docking of a
vessel are capitalised and depreciated over the
period to the next estimated dry-docking date.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. The carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amounts if the
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

R R B MR SE AR Rt T B
B R2EHRES R - B ABIEK
BEEEEBHZFAX -

EHEER M ARREEMER B
MAREE - LANEEKABER 52
AR HEKAT S ABEL
EESERRBELEE(RER
BRME)  BEERD 2REER
REURIER © A R & RRE
ERELZVBMEESRABERR
Hip 2 ERmR T o

BENBERENEVRABRE
REMAIERAFRBERNED
REHFSREESHENE - frH
ERFHIT

RARKE 54
A 5%
aliE 10-204F
HERE 34

WEBMAAES - NN IRETTR IS
RRERRNEHN c EBTHAA
BT RER - YR EEHE TR
TRISMHE R IRt B E -
MR RETRIREEEL 2R
BRERL - IREE M TRE
TTEIRME B I AR &I E -

BEZNHEENMAIEAFHRE
BERTARE - XEH TR
) o s AR EE & R E A F AT IR
Bl &5 - R ARE(E R HOR 2= 5
A OB EE

HEMELRAENEBRNLBHME
FRERAEETE - Y& AER
KEMEEW S RIER -



Annual Report 2015 e 2015 FF R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Other long-lived assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 T 5 8 0 B i

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Financial assets
Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: held-for-trading
investments and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(i

@

®)

Held-for-trading investments
Held-for-trading investments are financial
assets held-for-trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categories
as held-for-trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group's loans
and receivables comprise trade
receivables, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables, finance lease payment
receivables, unsecured loan receivables
and cash and bank balances in the
consolidated balance sheet and the
Company balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date, the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Held-for-trading
investments are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets held-for-trading
investments are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the held-for-trading investments are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from held-for-trading investments is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
when the Group's right to received payments is
established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 T 5 8 0 B i

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Impairment of financial assets

2 FESTHEEME®)
29 SREEZRE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.10 Trade and other receivables

2 FESHERBE®)
2.10 FE Ut 85 2 T L fth B Uk 3508

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtors,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinguency in
payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income within
“administrative expenses”. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade receivable. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against
"administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories comprise bunkers on board of vessels,
lubricating oil and marine products and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses. Bunkers will be used for the
operation of the vessel, therefore the bunkers are not
written down to net realisable value when the market
price falls below cost if the overall shipping activity is
expected to be profitable.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and bank overdrafts. In the
consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 1 BB e B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.15 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.16 Current and deferred income tax

2 FESTHEEME®)
2.16 BNHR RIEEFT 85

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements.

However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. The
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred taxation is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred taxation asset is realised or the
deferred taxation liability is settled.

Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2 FESHERBE®)
2.16 BNHANEZEFT B 8% (&)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity and specific criteria have been met.
Revenue is shown net of sales tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

Revenue from voyage chartering of vessel are
recognised on a percentage of completion basis.

Sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and the title has passed.

Finance lease income is recognised using the
effective interest rate implicit in the lease over the
term of the lease. Contingent rent is recognised as
income in the period in which it is earned.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

BB RTE AR THE R A S B EARR IR
BEENMNGAERE - miET
IS MBERBIEY RFE — BB
BARERNERITRAERHER
B RN XERIRFERE
B RIRSRERSHEERR
R -

2.17 WA TERR

WABERAEEZ AEEBBE
RLIHE B MRS AT S I A
B2ARE AEEENBAZRER
BESIR] SERT & - RREFIZR I BE
MABBREN AR TRERER
WA = FTHIRIATIE R 8 &
B RE - B RITI0A R HA
SEARZHE

MAfERER AR Z AL
EEWER

EmiEWAREAREZE R KA
HERE  VBEFRERRXNTE
F R EER R -

BMEHEWATIZERBEMATRE
MHAMR SN ERA KRR - 3
A& R BRERE B AR AN
A o

A B A IR B R ) 2K AR ] £ )
R -



Annual Report 2015 e 2015 FF R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Employee benefits

(@

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Retirement scheme obligations

In accordance with the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC based employees of the
Group participate in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised
by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group
and the PRC based employees are required to
make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’
salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired PRC
based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post retirement benefits of its employees.
The assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administered funds managed by the PRC
government.

The Group also participates in a pension
scheme under the rules and regulations of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
("MPF Scheme”), which is a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are
based on minimum statutory contribution
requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month. The assets of this pension
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.

The Group's contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed
as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 T 5 8 0 B i

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal. In
the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundantly the termination benefits
are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than twelve months
after balance sheet date are discounted to
present value.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options
granted. In determining the fair value of the
options granted:

° market performance conditions are taken
into considerations;

o the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining as employee of the entity
over a specified time period) is excluded;
and

o the impact of any non-vesting conditions
is included.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Leases

2 FESHERBE®)

2191E

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased
asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with
the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an
amount representing the minimum lease payment
receivables and initial direct costs is included in the
balance sheet as finance lease payment receivable.
Any unguaranteed residual value is also recognised
at the inception of the lease. The difference between
the sum of the minimum lease payment receivables,
initial direct costs, the unguaranteed residual value
and their present value is recognised as unearned
finance income. Unearned finance income is
recognised over the period of the lease using the
effective interest rate method.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss other comprehensive income on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 1 BB e B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company's financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.21 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 B¥EKREEEENEE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 FEEKRREE

The Group's major financial instruments include held-
for-trading investments, finance lease receivables,
unsecured loan receivables, other receivables, trade
deposit paid, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables, other payables, trade deposit received and
amount due to a director. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments,
include liquidity risk, credit risk, interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk and price risk, and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors meets periodically to analyse and formulate
measures to manage the Group’s exposure to
different risks arising from the use of financial
instruments. Generally, the Group employs
conservative strategies regarding its risk
management. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(@) Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed for each
operating entity of the Group and are
aggregated by the Group finance department.
The Group finance department monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements
to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
facilities at all times so that the Group does not
breach borrowing limits or covenants (where
applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.
Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group's debt financing plans, covenant
compliance, compliance with internal balance
sheet ratio targets and, if applicable external
regulatory or legal requirements.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 B¥EREEEEREE®)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 UBEKREZEE)
(@) Liquidity risk (Continued) (@) REBELRRE)

The table analyses the Group’s and the
Company's financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

TRREREEAESHE
HBEZRAAREAEE R
ARBZzeMAES D HE
MEI AR  RAMKES
BRANARBERERERE -

Group REE
Between
Less than 1and Over
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
SR1E 1258  5&ELE “ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THEL SO
At 31 March 2015 RZE-hE=A=+—H
Trade payables FERTER R 5,944 - - 5,944
Accruals, other payables [EETER « Efty
and deposit received ERFIEREREZS 129,398 = = 129,398
Amount due to a director EN—2EEHE 21 = = 21
Amount due to non-controlling FARE 2 2
interest 180 - - 180
135,543 - - 135,543
At 31 March 2014 RZZE-—ME=A=+—H
Trade payables FERTBRSR 3,600 = - 3,600
Accruals, other payables [EETERA - Efty
and deposit received ENFEREKZS 1,503 - - 1,503
Amount due to a related company B —FEEE A AIFE 41 = = 41
Amount due to a director EN—2EEHE 756 - - 756
Proceeds from rights issue (Note) A& FT15 3008 (&) 141,241 - - 141,241
147,141 - - 14741

Note: This amount has been reclassified to the equity of
the Company upon completion of the Rights Issue
on 3 April 2014.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 B¥EREEEEREE®)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 UBEKREZEE)
(@) Liquidity risk (Continued) (@) REBELRRE)
Company b N
Between
Less than 1and Over
1 year 5 years 5 years Total

DPIE 1255 5EHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL

At 31 March 2015 R-E—RF=A=1+—H

Accruals, other payables and FEFTER - EthENFUE
deposit received RESizS 1,065 - - 1,065
Amount due to a director R —REZHE 5 = - 5
1,070 - - 1,070

At 31 March 2014 RZZE-ME=A=1+—H

Accruals, other payables and [EETER - At F0a
deposit received REMIZS 666 - - 666
Amount due to a director Bt —%EEHE 756 - - 756

Proceeds from rights issue AR5 F0R (M3E)

(Note) 141,241 - - 141,241
142,663 - - 142663
Note: This amount has been reclassified to the equity of Miz: - EBEERN—_E—WENA

the Company upon completion of the Rights Issue —EHEREREEHDEE
on 3 April 2014. HES o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its cash and bank balances, trade receivables,
finance lease receivables, unsecured loan
receivables, deposits and other receivables.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
the carrying amounts of these financial assets.

To manage this risk, management has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, management reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable, unsecured loan receivables, finance
lease receivables and trade deposits paid to
ensure that adequate impairment provision is
made for the irrecoverable amounts.

The Group does not have any significant
exposure to any individual debtors or
counterparties.

Most of the Group's customers of finance
leasing and money lending do not have
independent rating. Before accepting any new
customer, where available at reasonable cost,
the Group prepare credit report to assess the
potential customer’s credit and defines credit
limits by customer. Credit limits of customers
are reviewed periodically. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group
has established credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

The credit risk on deposits with bank is limited
because deposits are in banks with sound
credit ratings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group was not exposed to
significant interest rate risk as at 31 March 2015
and 2014 as there was no variable interest
bearing assets or liabilities at the balance sheet
date.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily through its cash and bank balances,
finance lease receivables, deposit, prepayments
and other receivables, trade receivables, trade
payables, accruals, other payables, deposit
received and tax payables that are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily Renminbi (“RMB"), United
States dollar (“US$") and Euro (“EUR").

Given the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the
US$, the management does not expect that
there will be any significant currency risk
associated with such US$ denominated
balances and therefore no sensitivity analysis is
presented thereon.

The Group also exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from trade deposits paid and
received, primarily with respect to the EUR. The
management considers that foreign exchange
risk associated with such EUR denominated
balances is insignificant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis is presented thereon.

The Group ensures that the net exposure on
recognised assets arising from cash and bank
balances, finance lease receivables, deposit,
prepayments and other receivables, trade
receivables, trade payables, accruals, other
payables, deposit received and tax payables
that are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the operating to
which they relate is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot
rate where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

3 HEREEEERBE®
3.1 HEEREZE(S)

(c)

(d)
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXEREEBEREE®
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBERKBEEE)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) HhEmps(E)
() Exposure to foreign exchange risk () EZINEE R B
The following table details the Group's net TRV AREBLAE
exposure at the balance sheet date to TR AN
currency risk arising from recognised EMASAEIERDRE
assets/(liabilities) denominated in a E(AB) EEEK
currency other than the functional AEBAEE F Y BB F
currency of the entity to which they 58 o
related.
2015 2014
—ZE—0F —=-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
US$ ETT (3,572) (734)
RMB AR 87,626 64
84,054 (670)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BURED T
The following table indicates the TRETASEEHER
approximate change in the Group profit/ SBERGEE 7¥<§z$j<
loss after tax (and retained earnings/ [RV B 2 FINEE B 2R 5 3R ]
accumulated losses) in response to “"‘@é@]ﬁﬁf’ﬁﬂjZﬁf%ﬁ{é
reasonably possible changes in the wm A BB (RAR B &
foreign exchange rates to which the R BEER) SO
Group has significant exposure at the g o
balance sheet date.
2015 2014
“E-hF —E-E
Effect on Effect on
profit after loss after
tax and tax and
Increase/ retained Increase/ retained
(decrease) earnings (decrease) earnings
in foreign  Ex#fn inforeign  EX#E 1,/
exchange (B2) exchange O )
rates  FREI&IER rates  BREEEE
ERiEgm REE®RMN Exgn/ &4%%@%‘J
(&) M CR2) %=
HK$'000 HK$'OOO
FHET THT
RVB AR 10% 8,763 10% )
(10%) (8,763) (10%) 6



3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant.

The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange
rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. Results of the analysis
as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on the
Group profit after tax measured in the
respective functional currencies,
translated into HK$ at the exchange rate
ruling at the balance sheet date for
presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its held-for-trading investments in listed
equity securities. Decisions to buy or sell listed
equity securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual securities
compared to index of relevant stock markets
and other industry indicators.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the reporting date. If the prices of
the respective equity instruments had been
10% (2014: 10%) higher/lower, the Group’s post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2015
would increase/decrease by HK$3,390,000
(2014: Nil) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 B¥EREEEEREE®)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 UBEKREZEE)
()  Fair value estimation (Continued) ) DAAEMR-EE)
The following table presents the Group’s assets TREWRZZE-—RFR=
that are measured at their fair values at 31 T—ME=A=+—HBUA
March 2015 and 2014. REFEZAEE I EE -
2015 2014
—E-5fF “T-[mF
Level1  Level2  Level3 Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
E-% F-H E=# fF  EH  EZfH  E=R =H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS000  HK$000  HKS00  HK$'000
TExr Tz Tz THr TEr TEr  TET  TEn
Financial assets SREE
Held-for-trading investments:  #{EBEH#KA :
— Listed equity securities — EmkAES 33,900 - - 33,900 - - - =
Total @t 33,900 - - 33900 - - - -

There were no transfers between any levels
during the year.

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the reporting date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise equity
securities listed in Hong Kong Stock Exchange
classified as held-for-trading investments.

The fair values of current financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate
to their carrying amount.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXKEREEBEZEREEK®
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

3.2 cCapital risk management 3.2 EXEKER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
and amount due to a director. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders or sell
assets to reduce debt. The Group monitors capital on
the basis of gearing ratio. The total debt to equity
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
amount due to a director) less cash and bank
balances. The total debt to equity ratio at 31 March
2015 and 2014 were as follows:

AEEETEAY B RLREAE
BARBEE S HTARE
AR -

NEEEAREEBIEE D RER
—REBPIE - AEFSAEER
ZoFE - AEBESEHELMN FRE
ZRESHEKAHEEENRDE
B AEBUBELRERER -
BEABEYER R AEFER
BEZTE - AEFHEUNBEER
(BREEN—REZFFRE)RES &
BITHEGFAE -RZE—hFR=
T-ME=ZA=+—HzBE®E
R R ¢

2015 2014

—g-mF —T-mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Amount due to a director B —REEHIA 21 756
Less: Cash and bank balances W IRERIBEITE (118,659) (163,032)
Net cash H&F5E (118,638) (162,276)
Total equity RS 215,625 60,212

Net debt to equity ratio BERES R X

N/A ~iEH N/A i B
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated useful lives and residual values
of vessel

Management estimates useful lives of the vessel
by reference to the Group’s business model,
its assets management policy, the industry practice,
expected usage of the assets, expected repair and
maintenance, the technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in the market.
Management determines the estimated residual
value for its vessel based on the current scrap values
of steels in an active market at each measurement
date since management decides to dispose of the
fully depreciated vessel as scrap steels. Residual
values of the vessel is determined based on prevailing
market values for equivalent aged assets taking into
account the condition of the relevant assets and
other economic considerations. Depreciation expense
would be significantly affected by the useful lives and
residual values of the vessel as estimated by
management.

Estimated impairment of vessel

The Group’s major operating asset is represented by
the vessel. Management performs review for
impairment of the vessel whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts of these assets may not be recoverable.
Management considered there was no impairment
indicator on the carrying value of vessel as it
generates revenue and cash inflow to the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (note 16).

4
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(d) Trade receivables, finance lease

(e)

receivables, unsecured loan receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

The Group's management determines the provision
for impairment of trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, unsecured loan receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
The assessment is based on the credit history of its
customers and other debtors and the current market
condition, and requires the use of judgments and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision at
each balance sheet date.

Recognition of share-based payments

A subsidiary of the Company (the “Subsidiary”)
granted an option to an employee to subscribe for
upto 5% equity interest of that subsidiary.
Management of the Group have used the Binomial
Model to determine the total value of the option
granted, which is based on fair value and various
attributes of the underlying shares of the subsidiary.
Significant estimates and assumptions are required to
be made in determining the parameters for applying
the Binomial Model, including estimates and
assumptions regarding the risk-free rate of return,
expected dividend yield and volatility of the
underlying shares and the expected life of the share
options. In addition, the Group is required to estimate
the expected percentage of the grantee that will
remain in employment or terms with the Group or,
where applicable, if the performance conditions for
vesting will be met at the end of the vesting period.
The Group only recognises an expense for those
options expected to vest over the vesting period
during which the grantees become unconditionally
entitled to theses share-based awards. Changes in
these estimates and assumptions could have a
material effect on the determination of the fair value
of the options and the amount of such share-based
awards expected to become vested, which may in
turn significantly impact the determination of the
share-based payments.

4 EBEEGHEFTRAE @)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

()

(®

Income taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. Where
the final tax outcome is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current income tax in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred taxation in respect of temporary
differences attributable to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries in the PRC

The Group’s management determines the dividend
distribution plan of the subsidiaries in the PRC. Based
on the dividend distribution plan, retained profits as
at 31 March 2015 amounting to HK$432,000 (2014
Nil) will not be distributed by the subsidiaries as
dividend in the foreseeable future. The Group’s
management further reassesses the dividend
withholding tax rate based on current dividend
distribution plan and determines that certain of these
subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at
the rate of 5% for dividend payments instead of 10%.
Future change in the dividend distribution plan may
have a material impact on the amount of deferred
taxation being recognised.

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Board of the Company. The Board reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of the
operations. Each of the Group's reportable segments
represents a strategic business unit that is subject to risks
and returns that are different from other reportable
operating segment.

Aok 1 V5 9 0 B i
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
The Group’s reportable and operating segments are as
follows:

. Vessel chartering segment engaged in voyage
chartering in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and Southeast Asia region;

o Trading segment engaged in trading of goods in the
PRC,

o Money lending segment engaged in provision of loan
financing in Hong Kong; and

o Finance leasing segment engaged in provision of
finance leasing and sale-leaseback in the PRC.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit/
loss represents the profit/loss earned by each segment
without allocation of incomes or expenses which are not
recurring in nature and unrelated to the Group's operating
performance, including central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments, changes in fair value of held-for-
trading investments and share-based payments.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments, all assets are
allocated to operating segments other than held-for-trading
investments, cash and bank balances and other corporate
assets.

There was no separate reporting segment apart from the
vessel chartering for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on their underlying operating profit/(I0ss),
which is measured by profit/(loss) before taxation.
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARSEER &)

(Continued)
(@) Segment revenue and results (@) ZEUMAREE
Year ended 31 March 2015
BE-_Z-RF=A=1-—ALFE
Vessel Money Finance

chartering Trading lending leasing Total
MREE g5 B8 MERE At
Segment revenue and HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
results SEBWARES THET THET TET TERT TER
Segment revenue DERA 26,004 292,854 863 2,335 322,056
Segment results PEEE 2,014 3,478 848 1,056 7,396
Corporate expenses TERY (12,889)
Operating l0ss REEE (5,493)
Corporate income DERA 9

Gain on changes in fair BEEEIRE

value of held-for-trading A {EEE
investments Uz 14,300 89

Profit before taxation BREE A& A 8,816
Taxation HiE (835)
Profit for the year AEE T 7,981

Year ended 31 March 2014
BHEz—_Z—MWE=A=1+—H

IEFE
Vessel

chartering Total

MR E BEr

HK$'000 HK$'000

Segment revenue and results PHEBARESE T T
Segment revenue WA 12,943 12,943
Segment results DEHEE (7,200) (7,200)
Corporate expenses TERY (11,529)
Operating loss K EsE (18,729)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHN B AR WS 15,242
Loss before taxation FRELRIES 1R (3,487)

Taxation AL -

Loss for the year REEEE (3,487)
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARSDEER &)

(Continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) 7HEEERAE
As at 31 March 2015
R-E-EF=A=+—H
Vessel Money Finance
chartering Trading lending leasing Total
MMAE g5 &E mEHE st
Segment assets and HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
liabilities STEEEREE THERT TERT THERT TERT TERT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment B 35,339 - - 130 35,469
Goodwill EES - - - 1,000 1,000
Finance lease receivables  fEWE ST E
I - - - 26,223 26,223
35,339 - - 27,353 62,692
Current assets MEEE 4,278 35,445 16,223 66,455 122,401
Segment assets STEEE 39,617 35,445 16,223 93,808 185,093
Unallocated: ROHE
Cashand bank balances & RiR1T4EF 118,659
Others Hitp 48,251
Total assets per balance ~ BEBEXREE
sheet mE 352,003
Segment liabilities SEEE 964 115,866 138 17,724 134,692
Unallocated: RAE
Amount due to a director ~ JEff—ZEE 58 21
Others Hit 1,665
Total liabilities per balance BEBEZEE
sheet BE 136,378
Other segment HihaEER
information
Capital expenditure EARY - - - 136 136
Unallocated capital APRERRST
expenditure 4,350
4,486
Depreciation E 915 - - 6 921
Unallocated depreciation kA EHE 1,268

2,189
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

(Continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

WARDEER #)

(b) 7EEERERK#E)

As at 31 March 2014
R-ZE—WNFE=A=+—H

Vessel
chartering Total
WA E 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEERER TET FET
Non-current assets EMENE E
Plant and equipment S KB 36,254 36,254
Current assets mENEE 4,313 4,313
Segment assets DEEE 40,567 40,567
Unallocated: ROE :
Cash and bank balances BRe RRTET 163,032
Others Hi 3,754
Total assets per balance sheet BEBEBEREERE 207,353
Segment liabilities o h=R 4,067 4,067
Unallocated: ROE :
Amount due to a related company e —fEIRAE A R IE 41
Amount due to a director EN—RESHIE 756
Proceeds from rights issue HARFTIS SRIE 141,241
Others EHih 1,036
Total liabilities per balance sheet EEABRABERE 147,141
Other segment information HihpEE R
Capital expenditure BARRX 36,676 36,676
Unallocated capital expenditure ROMERRL 1,709
38,385
Depreciation e 933 933
Unallocated depreciation AoBLITE 128

1,061
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 IWARDEER »#)
(Continued)
(c) Revenue are derived from the following (c) WATIRETIEXTEERFE :
major customers:

2015 2014

- —EIF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Customer A = FEH 292,854 -
Customer B BEZ - 5,229
Customer C EXFEA 3,995 =
Customer D ®XFPT 3,784 -
Customer E =EIX 3,235 -
Customer F z2HE2 3,190 -
Customer G ZEE - 2,992
Customer H BE¥ - 2,934
Customer | BEEFE - 1,788

307,058 12,943
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HWyA

2015 2014

—Z2—0F —FE—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Exchange gain, net FEN WA - R 686 -
Bank interest income HRITH BWA 16 =
Others HAth 71 -

773 =
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Aok 1 V5 9 0 B i

7 BMEEED 2z

2015 2014

—E-hfF —E—mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET BT

Fuel costs YR I 12,223 8,867

Cost of inventories sold FEHEEKAR 288,176 =
Staff costs, including directors’ BIKA  BiEESHE

emoluments 5,932 5,987

Share options granted to an employee % T 8 AR 262 -

Auditor’'s remuneration 1Z AN & 430 300

Depreciation e 2,189 1,061
Operating lease charges in respect of BFrREHElemYy

property rental 2,699 2,626

Professional fees HEEH 1,668 2,767

Repair and maintenance B RIRE 54 60

Vessel management fee MisEEE R 10,140 2,687

Others EAh 4,540 6,898
Total cost of sales and administrative SHEKRARITHRE ABE

expenses 328,313 31,253
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8

FINANCE COSTS 8 mEM
2015 2014
—F-I%F —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Finance costs B AR
— other finance charges — HiB A - 419
TAXATION 9 BiIE
2015 2014
—ZE—AfF —TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Current income tax BIEART 15 35t
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEFEH 604 =
— PRC corporation income tax — RS 231 =
835 —
Hong Kong profits tax EBRNEHR

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for

the year.

PRC corporate income tax

The PRC corporate income tax in respect of operations in
Mainland China is calculated at the applicable tax rates on
the estimated assessable profits for the year based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect

thereof.

EBFEBRIBIEAFE 2 (AT ERM
S IR TR % 16.5% (20144 : 16.5%)51E °

RIS H

BRTRAEXRGEELTRCEMRT
MERBERITED - RERBBEMNR
AEREFTERPUENERATRAH -
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TAXATION (Continued)

Withholding tax on distributed/undistributed
profits

The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless
reduced by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC
subsidiaries to its immediate holding company outside the
PRC for earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008.

Deferred taxation has not been provided in the financial
statements in respect of the temporary difference
attributable to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not release in the foreseeable future.

The amount of taxation charge for the year can be

Bas 1 BB e M

BIE )
BHIR, RO IRSR 2 B

B2008F1A1A R - BRIFREHRB
AT LR A R BIBOE R E BB
REFEEE RN AEFR BRI ERE
B n R IR BB R4 10% TR ©

HRASEREHIEHEREZERDL
R MEZERHUEEZRRAERAR
RETEEHA - ALK+ BB A7
DIRRE S PTSI R EREER 2R
FREER B R BRI B REAFEE -

AEEHIAR X BRAEHATER, (&

reconciled to the profit/(loss) before income tax as follows: B) ZHERIT ¢
2015 2014
—2-1F —F-MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit/(loss) before taxation B A A (E1E) 8,816 (3,487)
Calculated at domestic income IR TSR R 16.5% 5T &
tax rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) ZZ—PO%F : 16.5%) 1,454 (575)
Effect of different tax rates S =PNEIRNEE ==
of subsidiaries 79 -
Tax effect of: A Z
Income not subject to tax AR WA (2,869) (4,651)
Expenses not deductible for DA IF 2 B2

tax purposes 313 3,716
Tax losses for which no deferred W T RIR A PSR

income tax was recognised Z B EE 1,858 1,510
Utilisation of tax loss ) 2 BIF IS BT 18 (2) =
Tax loss not recognised RIERH S EE 2 -

Tax charge IR 835 -
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10 DIVIDEND

11

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014 Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE

10 RE

EETEZRBE_T—OLF=A
=+ RAEFERMEMRES(ZF—MN
T

11 SRER(FHE)

2015 2014
—E—AF —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Restated
gl
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders — F&EE (L %7,/ (E518) 7,983 (3,487)
Weighted average number of ordinary STEEREARRT(EHE) 2
shares, for the purposes of T m AR A & (FRR)
calculating basic earnings/(losses) (B=E)
per share (shares in thousands)
(Note) 336,319 98,123
Basic earnings/(losses) per share BREREMN,(ER) HK2.37 cents  HK(3.55) cents

2.37 Al (3.55) &Il

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic earnings/(losses) per share for both
years has been retrospectively adjusted for the effect of Rights
Issue and Bonus Issue completed in April 2014 and share
consolidation completed in January 2015.

As there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding as at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the diluted
earnings/(losses) per share are equal to the basic earnings/
(losses) per share.

BiaE : R=T—FH AR 2 R R AT
ER-ZB—RF-AEKZBHEH B
MIEFEE AR EERERRR, (B
Bz BRI IH#E L BB -

R-B—AFR-_F-—WF=A=+—
B SIEAABEESTE AR
WEREERN,(BHE) BGREXER
Fl,/(B1E) 48R -



12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a)

Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments
Year ended 31 March 2015
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12 EEREEFALTHE
(a) EBREREEASHM

BE-E—HF=A=1+—HLHEF

E
Employer’'s
contribution
to pension
scheme
Name of director Fees EiR:tE= Total
BEEnA we EEMH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT F#&xT F#&xT
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Zheng Juhua B IE T 850 18 868
Mr. Chen Shaohua* RS A 180 9 189
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BRI E 1,690 18 1,708
Independent non-executive By IkHTEE
directors
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SEIRE A 105 - 105
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIALCEE 105 - 105
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEMEA 105 - 105
3,035 45 3,080

* Resigned on 30 September 2014

*

RZZE—OFNA=THEHE
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12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(@) Directors’ and senior management'’s
emoluments (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2014

12 EERBESHFALTEHE @)
(a) EEREREEASEME)

HE_Z-—NF=A=+—HILF

E
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
scheme
Name of director Fees RIKFrEIZ Total
EEMA e BEMHEK M5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T BT
Executive directors HITEE
Ms. Zheng Juhua Bt + 430 15 445
Mr. Chen Shaohua PR EE S A 390 15 405
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BREAE 1,330 15 1,345
Independent non-executive JHIFEHITES
directors
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SEIRE A 100 - 100
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RECHEE 100 - 100
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEME S E 100 - 100
2,450 45 2,495

No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2014: Nil). Fees paid to
independent non-executive directors during the year
amounted to HK$315,000 (2014: HK$300,000).

No emoluments have been paid to the individual or
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014 Nil).

FA - ESREREXURBRELT
e (ZF—0F  #) - FAX
NBIFATESTZAE R
315,0007% 7T (== — P94 : 300,000

FBIT)

REBEZ2-_F-—AF=A=1t—HLt
FEA - AEAERESEMEM
e - (FR SN SKBIH hn B AR
SEZRSHBERAE( T MW
FE)
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12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The Directors’ emoluments presented above include
the emoluments of the two (2014: three) highest paid
individuals in the Group. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2014: two) highest paid individual
during the year ended 31 March 2015 were:

Aok 1 V5 9 0 B i

12 EERBREFALTHES @

(b) EEBEHAL
EXmRENEEFMEEMA (=
Z—MF: ZR)AEERSHFA
TZME  REBEE_T-HF=A
=St—HLEFEARBKT=R(=F

—OF: MB)EEHFALZHE

p=)
2015 2014
—F-1F %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, bonus, other allowances Frd -~ JEAT - HihEBR
and benefits in kind LEYF = 1,850 633
Share-based payment VARSAD A 2L S 1+ 262 -
Employer’s contributions to RIRETEI 2 (B EH
retirement scheme 32 28
2,144 661
Emolument bands Number of individuals
MENF AE
2015 2014
—B-RF —T—F
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z 702 1,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 70 £ 1,500,000 7T 1 -
3 2

13 PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company amounted to HK$2,392,000 (2014: loss
HK$5,353,000).

13 A RAERFEABGERE
B & 2 H W 2 2R

AN 0 A e 2 T K 2 4R B 45 2,392,000
BT (ZF—M4F : E85,353,000% 7T)
EERTARFMBERE
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14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 BEREH
Group rE
Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
improvement fixtures vehicles Vessel Total
REZEE RAREE RE M @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL THL TAL TAL
At1 April 2013 RZE-=§NA-A
Cost KA = 2] = 87,017 87,044
Accumulated depreciation Z:HATE - 27 - (25,295) (25,322)
Net book amount RAFE - = - 61722 61,722
Year ended 31 March 2014 HEZZ-ME=A=T-AILER
Opening net book amount ENREFE - - - 61722 61722
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-AREAR - - - (61,.211) (61,.211)
Additions NE = = 1,709 36,676 38,385
Depreciation E = = (128) (933) (1,061)
Closing net book amount FREEFE = = 1,581 36,254 37,835
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=+-H
Cost KA = 2] 1,709 36,676 38,412
Accumulated depreciation ZE - 27) (128) (422) (577)
Net book amount SR HE = = 1,581 36,254 37,835
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z-R4-A=1-HI%E
Opening net book amount ERRFE = = 1,581 36,254 37,83
Additions NE 994 2832 660 = 4,486
Depreciation & (331) (524) (419) 915) (2,189)
Closing net book amount FRREE 663 2,308 1822 35,339 40,132
At31 March 2015 R-F-RF=A=1-A
Cost R 994 2859 2369 3,676 12,898
Accumulated depreciation 2:E (331) (551) (547) (1,337) (2,766)

Net book amount FRFE 663 2,308 1,822 35,339 40,132
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14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 FHEREHM &)
Company KAT
Furniture
Leasehold and
improvement fixtures Total
HE#E HAREE FoH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FET
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FMA—H
Cost (B - 27 27
Accumulated depreciation RETIE = 27) (27)
Net book amount RHFE = = =
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE_Z-—ME=A=+—HLHE
Opening net book amount FREFE - - -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—BBAR = = =
Additions RE - - -
Depreciation e - - _
Closing net book amount FREMFE = = =
At 31 March 2014 RZE-NF=A=1+—H
Cost BXAR - 27 27
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE - (27) (27)
Net book amount FEFRE - - _
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_Z-—RF-A=T—HIEFE
Opening net book amount FREFE - - -
Additions NE 994 2,696 3,690
Depreciation & (331) (518) (849)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 663 2,178 2,841
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RAF=A=+—H
Cost AR 994 2,723 3717
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (331) (545) (876)
Net book amount REFE 663 2,178 2,841




102

NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED o {ZImR &R AR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 1 BB e B

15 SUBSIDIARIES 15 M A TA

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Unlisted shares, at cost e LMD - A AE - 12
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE BT B A Bl FIE 170,486 42,630
Less: Impairment of receivables* L FEWGRIERE (4,371) (4,377)
166,115 38,259

Less: Amounts not expected to be B RN e —FRNER
realised within one year 2 (166,115) (38,259)
Amounts classified under current asset FREARYEECERE - -

Amounts classified under non-current SHEAIRDEECER

asset 166,115 38,271
# Impairment of HK$4,371,000 (2014: HK$4,371,000) was # HARAREE THERRSRGER e

recognised for amounts due from subsidiaries with a carrying
amount of HK$170,486,000 (before deducting impairment |0ss)
(2014: HK$42,630,000) because certain subsidiaries of the
Company were loss-making.

L1 BR R (B /&5 18 A1 R T {E A& 170,486,000
BT (= Z— P4 : 42,630,000 7T) 2 JE
1 B BB A B 5% I8 RE 7R Rk 114,371,000 7% T
(ZZ—4 : 4,371,000 7T) °

The amount due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest FEYHT B A RIIE A EEE - £ BRI
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying EETERMR ZEHEKRCREMBER
amounts of the balance is approximate to their fair values. AAERSE -
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 TABARRARZE—AF=H=1—
March 2015: BzExZMBAF :

Place of Particulars of issued/

incorporation/ registered and fully paid Principal activities and
Name registration share capital place of operation
£y S, B it B ERTRATZERSE FTEERREE MY
Shares held directly:
BEEHFR

Noble Century Investment Group Limited  British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each

RBERRES 1REREEIRT B REER

Investment holdings
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15 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Bas 1 BB e M

15 B AT %)

Place of Particulars of issued/
incorporation/ registered and fully paid Principal activities and
Name registration share capital place of operation
=g MBS 3t 2 ERTREZEERS TEEBRREEME
Shares held indirectly:
S :
Ace Plus Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands 100 shares of US$1 each  Vessel Chartering
RBAERRES 100 IR G AR EE 1557T operated mainly in
2 &H the PRC and
Southeast Asia
region
FERPREKRED
Hb [ A8 & s AR
HEXE®
Noble Century Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Money lending
CInB B ERAR] B 10,0007 7T operated in
Hong Kong
REBKEBEFE
TMERICRINBEREER AR People’s Republic US$10,000,000 Finance leasing
of China 10,000,000 7T operated in
=s] the PRC
RABKEFERE
ES
Noble Century KS Group Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 Investment holdings
CIRBHEEER AR B 100,000 7T BEER
Hidili Pacific Industrial Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Methanol trading
BERREEZXFERAA B 1,000,0007% 7T in the PRC
ES7

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

EERR LRMINARFKE AR
ITBREANFERANBRASEEE
FEZ T EZE D  c EFERARIIHEAN
BRI ZFHEHSRRENIIE -
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16 GOODWILL 16 BE
HK$’'000
FHT
Cost and carrying values B K BR T {E -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note (32)), B B B 1 B A (BT (32)) -
and at 31 March 2015 AR ZE—HRF=A=+—H 1,000

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing to the
finance leasing division cash generating unit.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of 100% equity interest in
Comercializadora Ven 2010 C.A Limited and its subsidiary
on 9 July 2014.

The recoverable amount of this group of cash-generating
units is determined based on a value in use calculation
which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the directors covering a five-year
period, and a discount rate of 8% per annum.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based
on similar gross margins and inflation throughout the
budget period. In the opinion of the directors, no
impairment loss was required for the year ended 31 March
2015. The directors believe that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based would not cause the carrying amount of
the group of units to exceed the aggregate its recoverable
amount.

FEEREEREHESIHRSELE
R ERE DRI ©

BEEEER_ZTZ—WFLtANBWE
Comercializadora Ven 2010 C.A Limited
R EHKTE A B Z 100% IR AHE RS ©

AEEREELEMNAIKRESER
BEREEETHE (EREZMILER
ESFHRCVBEE  EHAEF8%Z
RRREDR S REAEETAHE) ME
=

ZAEHARNRSRBRERRLINE
NMERBEBBEHRER LK EFR
RO BE_T-AF=ZA=+t—HLF
EEEREREE - EFHE Thos
BARENERRRNEMNSER LR
B TEERASEEURAERSE
A el & FE AR o
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17 FINANCE LEASE PAYMENT RECEIVABLES 17 FEW Rt EHRERIE

Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-hF —ZT—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Finance lease payment receivables due TE 5 58
Within 1 year 43,624 =
2-5 years 26,223 -
69,847 -
(@) Classification by nature (a) ®BHEEBEIE
Group
KEE
2015 2014
—E-HEF —ZF—[yF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Gross finance lease payment TH A%
receivables 82,349 -
Less: Unearned finance income B REHEBE W (12,502) =
Net finance lease payment PR B & M & IR F R
receivables 69,847 -
Less: Provision for finance lease R U R A A S SR IE R

payment receivables

Total of finance lease payment
receivables

e R E M E IR ST

69,847 =
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17 FINANCE LEASE PAYMENT

RECEIVABLES (continued)

17

(b) An aging analysis of the finance lease payment
receivables as at the end of the reporting period is as

Wt ERERE 2

(b) MIEHF  EURBEREFTER
RO

follows:
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-HEF —Z—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Gross finance lease payment FEU R E T & FUR AR
receivable
Within 1 year 1FER 82,349 =
2-5 years 2-5F - -
5 years and beyond S5 AR - -
82,349 -
Net finance lease payment FEU R B M & IR R
receivables
Within 1 year 1R 69,847 -
2-5 years 2-5F - -
5 years and beyond 5F AR - -

69,847 =
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17 FINANCE LEASE PAYMENT 17 EWREHERNIE 2
RECEIVABLES (continued)
(c) The table below illustrates gross and net amount of (c) RETRAREESHEE A%
finance lease payment receivables the Group expects E R MR ERERNR
to receive in the following five consecutive accounting BIRFEHRINAN T
years:
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Gross finance lease payment W EYE TR E R IE AR
receivables
Within 1 year 1FERN 49,714 -
2-5 years 2-54F 32,635 =
5 years and beyond 5 LATE - -
82,349 =
Net finance lease payment FEU R E M & RIE F R
receivables
Within 1 year 1ER 43,624 =
2-5 years 2-5F 26,223 -
5 years and beyond 5 LATE - -
69,847 =
There was no unguaranteed residual value in REEER  NREF W EEZEH
connection with finance lease arrangements or S ERERELTHARN
contingent lease arrangements of the Group that RIEFRBEZEREDR -

needed to be recorded as at the end of the reporting
period.
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18 INVENTORIES 18 FE&
Group
AEH
2015 2014
—ZE-0F —=-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
Bunkers on board Yo _E R AR 1,129 2,061
19 TRADE RECEIVABLE 19 FEWERR
Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E-HEF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&7T
Trade receivable FEUER TR - 1,385
The Group's credit terms are individually negotiated with its AEBZEEGRFEENEEEZRF

trade customers. The Group's trade receivables are

generally with credit periods of 30 days.

An aged analysis of the trade receivable as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the date of invoice, is as

BE - ARENRUKERZEEH K
B30K -

RBEYR - RBERARZE 5HERHK
TRRRER DTN

follows:
Group
REH
2015 2014
—E-hF —ET—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ET FET
Within 1 month —EAR - 1,385
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TRADE RECEIVABLE (continued)
The aged analysis of the trade receivable that is not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

19

Aok 1 V5 9 0 B i

EUWBRK (&)
READRES B 5 KR IEE T
M

Group
TEE
2015 2014
—E-HE —E—mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaxT FET
Neither past due nor impaired B oA 481 5 7N AR R E - 1,385

Trade receivable represented an amount due from a single
customer and the trade receivable is non-interest bearing.

The carrying amount of trade receivable is denominated at
United States dollars.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER 20

RECEIVABLES

EHREFEERRE -—EPREARE
HEYKRARTE R °

FEW BR R 2 BREE A E T HIME -

BE - ANRERAEMER

I

Group Company
REH P NG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT-MNMFE ZT-HE —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&T FET FET FET
Trade deposits paid (note () BEfE 5iks
(PR EE (i) 35,444 - - -
Deposit paid for acquisition B fTUkEEERE 2 %S
of a business (note (ii) (B3 (i) 8,000 - - -
Deposit paid for proposed Al g R AR E 2 HE
finance lease arrangements &4 (F3E (jii))
(note (iii)) 10,000 - - -
Other deposits paid, HiE e
prepayments and other TR RRIE K EAth
receivables FEUTZRIE 17,670 3,040 1,662 2,124
71,114 3,040 1,662 2,124
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20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

The amount represents the trade deposits paid to suppliers for
trading of methanol. The entire amount is expected to be
recovered within the next twelve months.

On 7 July 2014, the Group entered into a memorandum of
understanding (the “MOU") with an independent third party (the
“Vendor”) in relation to a possible subscription and/or
acquisition (the “Possible Acquisition”) of a company (the “Target
Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Target Group”) which is
principally engaged in the trading of plastic pellets, seafood and
electronic components business in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Pursuant to the MOU, a refundable deposit in the sum of
HK$8,000,000 has been paid to the Target Company. In the
event that the formal agreement in relation to the Possible
Acquisition is entered into, such refundable deposit shall form
part of the consideration. In the event that the formal agreement
is not entered into on or before the date falling six months from
the date of the MOU which has been extended to 7 July 2015
subsequently, or such later date the Group and the Vendor may
agree, the MOU shall cease and terminate, and the Target
Company shall forthwith refund the above deposit.

As at 31 March 2015, as additional time is required for the due
diligence review, therefore, no formal agreement has yet been
entered.

The amount represents deposit paid to a potential lessee for
proposed finance lease arrangement. As at 31 March 2015, no
formal finance lease agreement has yet been entered.

20 L EANFEREHAMmELK
FRIE ()
B EE -

(i EBEEENTHEAZFEZSEZS -
2MEBIBFTHR AL+ —EAARYKE -

(i) AEBER-_Z-—NFLALtHEBISE
=7 (TB&7 DA — ik ek ([ ek
BmeR]) - TRERRE R SRR (AT Be ik
BER)) - ZERTERTEELEZER
K BHREFLMHESEBZAR(E
ERR ) REMBAR(TEZEEE]D -

B AR R B {8 = 8% - 7] 3R 38 5] & 8,000,000
BTEXN T BERR - M5t Al gt iE S
BRI IERXHZ - ZARETSHEERR
BEAPID o MR FREETE B BER
NEAER(BEEREE_ZT—HELA
+H) KA (IAREEEE S A REHE 2
%AW EET T ER s - BIRRRE
SEEEE L RRLE - B IRARERE
A& T RE AN EET RIE o

RZZE—AF=A=+—H ARFTEER
ZREETERES « FbH AR ZIER
fha ©

@iy EEERITEREAEERHEINT A
BEABARE - R —-—RHF=H
=1+—H HARIZEABEBEERHR
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20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER 20 &% - Fa{{ZE R H b fE

RECEIVABLES (Continued) I (@)
(iv)  The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayment and (iv) 1&® - BAFIEREMEKIEZ REEE
other receivables are denominated in the following IATEIEHEIE :
currencies:
Group Company
rEH PN
2015 2014 2015 2014

—Z-1RF —T0OF =T-HF —TWF
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT TET TAT

HK$ BT 9,689 2,173 1,662 2,124
us$ ET 16,780 803 - -
EUR BT 9,103 - - -
RMB AR 35,542 64 - _
71,114 3,040 1,662 2,124
21 HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 21 HEEERE
Group and Company
AEBRAAT
2015 2014
—E—AF —ET—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Equity securities held-for-trading: BIEEBERAES
— Listed in Hong Kong —RBEALEN 33,900 -
The held-for-trading investments are stated at fair value at REEBERENBEHRAREZAAESR
the end of the reporting period. The fair values of listed Blo FTRAEBS AR ELRBR I
equity securities are determined by reference to the bid KPR EETE °

prices on the stock exchange.
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22 UNSECURED LOAN RECEIVABLES 22 EIEHEWER

Group
REE
2015 2014
—E—8F —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Unsecured loan and interest receivables 3K 1 fE g & 2 R F & 16,222 -
Group
AEH
Analysed as: 2015 2014
—E-hF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unsecured loan receivables ERAERE R 16,000 =
Interest receivables FEULA) B, 222 -
16,222 -

The Group’s unsecured loan and interest receivables,
which arise from the money lending business in Hong
Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Unsecured loan and interest receivables are interest-
bearing and are repayable with fixed terms agreed with the
Group’s customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at each of the reporting dates is the carrying value of the
receivables mentioned above.

As at 31 March 2015, all of the unsecured loan and interest
receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

All the unsecured loan and interest receivables are
repayable within one year.

The credit quality of unsecured loan and interest
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired has
been assessed by reference to historical information about
counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties do
not have defaults in the past.

AEEERAREEFREREBREM
GBS - WIABTEHE

EE A EWE R LA E S BN ER
SEEFPRTNETHRAEE - &
BERHMEBRNSAEERR AL
X Pt FE MR IR B RR LA ©

R-ZE-—RAE=A=+—8B MEEHE
RIS TR M B R BEA T ARBE ©

A EEMEKERENER —FRE
Hj o

R 380 HA T AR Rk (B ) 48 4 490 R Mk R e
ENEEERTN2EZEMYUTHENE
MBEEETHE RAERSTEE
I 8 3E HIRC R
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23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 23 BERBTEE
Group Company
A%E EINS
2015 2014 2015 2014

-6 -—T-NF —B-HEE -—T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tt Tl Tt

Cash atbankand onhand  $R{7 N FEEIR S 118,659 163,032 7,046 161,575
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are Re RBITHET ZREBEN TS EES
denominated in the following currencies: B :
Group Company
rEE AAT
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-RF —ZT—OF ZE-HF —T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FBT FH&xT T

HK$ BIT 31,859 161,516 6,987 161,516
us$ ETT 85,337 1,516 59 59
EUR Bx 7T 3 = - =
RMB AR 1,460 = - =
118,659 163,032 7,046 161,575
24 SHARE CAPITAL 24 BRA
(a) Authorised capital (@) ZEERAE
Number of Nominal
shares Value
g2 4| H{E
HK$'000
T
As at 31 March 2013, R-F—=fF=ZA=+—8”"
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each FAEE0.05 /BT 2 LBk 2,000,000,000 100,000
Capital reduction (Note (i) AR A HIRL (B 3E (1) 8,000,000,000 -
As at 31 March 2014, R-EB-mF=A=1+—8
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EREEN Bz TRk 10,000,000,000 100,000
Share consolidation (Note (iv)) %124 6 (B =E (v)) (9,000,000,000) =
As at 31 March 2015 RZZE—RF=RA=+—H

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREEI10B T LR 1,000,000,000 100,000
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24 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Issued and fully paid capital

(b)

24 B (#)

(b) EBTRBRKRS

Number of Nominal
shares Value
BAD S E HE1{E
HK$ 000
TAET
As at 31 March 2013, R-F—=fF=A=+—8"
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SRREE0.05 BT Ll 724,000,000 36,200
Placing of new shares (Note (i)) FReE 2 AR5 (M EE () 120,000,000 6,000
Capital reduction (Note (i) B& AN I (BT (i) _ (33,760)
As at 31 March 2014, ordinary shares RZ-Z—HWF=A=+—H -
of HK$0.01 each BREECO Bt BBk 844,000,000 8,440
Issue of rights shares (Note (iii)) BATHAR (PFI3E (i11)) 844,000,000 8,440
Issue of bonus shares (Note (iii)) BELTHT AR (B (i) 1.688,000,000 16,880
Share consolidation (Note (iv)) Bt & of (T (v) (3,038,400,000) -
As at 31 March 2015, N-—E—FE=A=+—8
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE0.I10B T LR 337,600,000 33,760

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

On 30 August 2013, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place shares
comprising up to 120,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each at
a placing price of HK$0.28 per placing share. The placing
was completed on 23 September 2013. Accordingly, the
Company increased its issued share capital by nominal
value of HK$6,000,000 with net proceeds of
approximately HK$32,600,000, of which HK$15 million has
been applied for the partial repayment of the Group's
borrowings and the remaining approximately HK$17.6
million has been applied as general working capital of the
Group.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting on 4 March 2014, the nominal value of the
shares of the Company was reduced from HK$0.05 to
HK$0.01 each. The authorised but unissued shares of
HK$0.05 each was subdivided into five shares of HK$0.01
each.

(i)

RZZ—=FNA=1+H " &AA7F
B ERET VA EHE @ SRAEC
ERPD AR EE028 BT ERE
120,000,000 i & AXE{E 0.05 B 7T.2
B - BER-_ZT—=Fh A
Z+=H%K - At - NARIE K
H BT AR E B3 50 6,000,000
P TT + BT 8 X8 % 58 4932,600,000
77T © & 71 15,000,00078 7T 2 A 1
EEAEEBHNEE BTH
17,600,00078 L E BIEAEE &8
B o

BEAABBRER_-_Z—NE=A
MASRTZRERIASEB R
BISREEZ - NARIRDEERTR
0058 THIRESGAR0IBIT - &
8 0.05 7 7T 2 A e B AR BEITRRIDIF
AR 0.01E T ©
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24 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b) Issued and fully paid capital (Continuead)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting on 4 March 2014, the Company announced a
rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) of 844,000,000 rights
shares (“Rights Shares”) of HK$0.01 each at a
subscription price of HK$0.18 per Rights Share on the
basis of one Rights Share for every one share held with
bonus issue (the “Bonus Issue”) on the basis of two
bonus shares (“Bonus Shares”) for every one Rights
Share taken up under the Rights Issue.

The Rights Issue and the Bonus Issue was completed on
3 April 2014, the Company allotted and issued
844,000,000 Rights Shares and 1,688,000,000 Bonus
Shares. Accordingly, the Company increased its issued
share capital by nominal value of HK$25,320,000 with net
proceeds of approximately HK$147,700,000, of which
approximately HK$100,000,000 and HK$47,700,000 has
been applied for business development and working
capital of the Group respectively.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting on 6 January 2015, every ten shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 each.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu
with the existing shares of the Company in all
aspects.

Aok 1 V5 9 0 B i

24 B (#)

(b) SETRBERA (&)
s : ()

@iy MEARABRERA=Z=—NHF=A
MARTZRERFIASERBZE
BISREEZ - ANRQ R DMHIR TR EER
B&A7 LA 0.18 78 7T 2 iR BB (B A A% (T it
A% 1) - 3% 17 844,000,000 §% & B M@
fB0.015% 7T 2 AR AR 19 ([ i AR A%
71l EEAERHE —RRMHER
—RRAEAEAR1D - BIRB B EAR T E
B — P AL A AR 47 R R AR AT % (4T
A% ) 2 BB TAI AR ([ZATAIAR]) »

HBRETARR=_Z—EOFENA
=B 0 AR E—HEREE R EET
844,000,000% # & B » &
1,688,000,000 B AT B% » EH It » AN A
AIE B H B BT AR EE N
25,320,000 7T + A5 BT R A
147,700,0007% 7T, + & = 100,000,000
7 7T ] 47,700,000 2 2 Bl F fE %75
BREEBES -

(ivy REARFARER-_ZT—HF—A
NERTZRERIASERBZE
BARE B +REREEH
TZARARRMDE A1 RERE
E0.108 T2 & PR °

PRARFERBEITZBRMN ST HHE
ARARIRBBNDZBBRMBAL
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24 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 24 B ()
(c) Share Option Scheme (c) BRRETE

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 2 September 2013, the shareholders of the
Company approved the adoption of the Share Option
Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from 2 September 2013, unless
otherwise terminated. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible and effective means of incentivizing,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or
providing benefits to the directors, employees and
other participants of the Company and the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed
10% of shares in issue on 2 September 2013 (i.e.
72,400,000 shares) unless the Company seeks the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting for
refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option
Scheme. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting on 2 September 2014, the 10% limit
under the Share Option Scheme was refreshed to
33,760,000 consolidated shares (after the
consolidation of every ten shares of HK$0.01 each
into one share of HK$0.10 each which was effective
in January 2015).

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable
period and the number of shares subject to each
option will be determined by the Board at the time of
grant. No option has been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption to
the date of this report.

RARR —ZE—=FNA B8
ZIRRBFERE L AARMREH
R AN BE IR RE AT 2 ([ B8 AR AT
El]) o BRBATEIESN - BB IR
BT =FNLA_HERBEAW
REM - BE+F - BRREEE
AR RAEEHRE GRS
MIRHERFAAES ETRHE
2R EERMZET - 2E - BiS
wER/ZEFH -

1T AR IR A A b = &I P 3% L 18 i
RITEEHI P R AR T R] BEBE T Y
BDEE EHRESTFBEBELR
AN 2 BT TR A AY 30% ©

EITE R IR AT S TR EH A
Fr 78 BB IR A 1 AT RE B2 1T MO IR 1D 42
H AETBEBBAR=ZT—=FAN
AZ BB %7 H 210%(Ef
72,400,000 %) + MEAR B A BEKAR
R A S A 33T IR AR A
FFEIB TR Z10% MR8 - RIEARA
BRAZZ—NFLA-—BRITZ
REBFRSRBETBAZRS
BERETEI T 2 10%[RECEFHE
33,760,000 Hix D (R=ZF—H
F— A +RESREE B ITE
ftAE—REREE105E T EK
&) o

EEERRRLBERERETEN
BREZITEE  REH  7ES
RS RBMEE - ERMBHE
AfE BE - ANRE W ERIRH
R AEMEARE -
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25 RESERVES 25 &
Group rEE
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share  Contributed Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserve earnings Total
(RHER)/
Rip e ERRH ERfE RERF ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T THT
At 1 April 2013 R-Z-—=£NA—A 52,333 - - (57,529) (5,196)
Placing of new shares RERL 27,600 - - - 27,600
Transaction costs attributable  E/T¥RRR M E(L
to issue of new shares RHEAK (905) - - - (905)
Capital reduction BRARH - 33,760 - - 33,760
Share premium cancellation B aEFH (79,028) 79,028 - - -
Transfer to Set-off accumulated LA R
losses BB = (61,730) - 61,730 -
Loss for the year FEEBR = = = (3.487) (3,487)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-EF=A=1+—H = 51,058 = 714 51,772
Issue of rights shares BT 143,480 - - - 143,480
Issue of bonus shares BOAR - (16,380) - - (16,380)
Transaction costs attributable to  B{TERRIAIEL
issue of new shares RBEA (3,125) = = = (3,125)
Profit for the year REEEN = = = 7,983 7,983
Exchange difference on translation #2355 78R %
of financial statements of EHE
foreign operations - - (1,645) - (1,645)
At 31 March 2015 W-F-R5=A=1-H 140,355 34,178 (1,645) 8,697 181,585
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25 RESERVES (continued) 25 f#fE)
Company ¥/
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share  Contributed Retained
premium surplus earnings Total
4 1E EXRH iR k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FTHL THL THET
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FMA—H 52,333 = (56,568) (4,235)
Placing of new shares EEMRH 27,600 - - 27,600
Transaction costs attributable BITHR D (S
to issue of new shares LS (905) - - (905)
Capital reduction FRASHD A - 33,760 = 33,760
Share premium cancellation B RE (79,028) 79,028 = =
Transfer to set-off accumulated BRI HEZFTER
losses - (61,730) 61,730 -
Loss for the year (note 13) AEEEEH13) = = (5,353) (6,353)
At 31 March 2014 R-Z-—NF=A=1+—H = 51,058 (197) 50,867
Issue of rights shares BATHR 143,480 - - 143,480
Issue of bonus shares BITHLIR - (16,880) - (16,880)
Transaction costs attributable to BT FE(S
issue of new shares RS (3,125) = = (3,125)
Profit for the year (note 13) REEGR (HE13) - - 2,392 2,392

At 31 March 2015 RZZ-RF=A=+—H 140,355 34,178 2,201 176,734
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The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows:

Aok 1 V5 9 0 B i

26 TR
FERBRFERE DM ¢

Group

AEE
2015 2014
—E-hF —ZT—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaExT FET
0to 90 days 0E9H 5,908 3,600
91 to 180 days 91% 180 H 36 =
181 to 365 days 181% 365 H - =
5,944 3,600

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated FE R BREENA T EETIE

in the following currencies:

Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—[F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Us$ ETT 719 3,600
RMB AR 5,225 =
5,944 3,600

27 ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 27 BirEAREMENTIE

DEPOSIT RECEIVED

Group Company
AEE LN
2015 2014 2015 2014

—g-EHfF ~T-MF —F-EE —T-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE  TET FER TEE

Trade deposit received BESEE
(note (i) (BF=E (i) 113,971 - - -
Accruals and other payables &t F K EAth
FERTFRIA 15,427 1,503 1,065 666

129,398 1,503 1,065 666
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27

28

29

30

31

ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
DEPOSIT RECEIVED (continued)

Notes:

(i) The amount represents the trade deposits received from a
customer for trading of methanol.

27

B ERAREMENR

GEE

RIE (47)

) HEEEN-—2BRFUITEEZRSE -

(i) The carrying amounts of accruals, other payables and deposit (i) FEEER - EtEMNREREKIESIAT
received are denominated in the following currencies: W EHTIE -
Group Company
AEH NG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-HF —FWF =B-HE T @OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHT F#&T FHT
HKS st 1,065 666 1,065 666
Us$ S5 105,479 837 - -
EUR BT 9,106 - - =
RMB AR 13,748 - - -
129,398 1,503 1,065 666
AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 28 FE{f —EEEE X FIA
Amount due to a related company is unsecured, interest fEft —FRRER T%’UEF%E%EEW %8
free and repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the RIREREER - ZEERZREEMN
balance is denominated in HK$ and is approximate to its BITSIE - AR ﬁifﬁ% °
fair value.
AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 29 EN—RESNIE
Amount due to a director is unsecured, interest free and EN—R2ESEREAERTF 28 RKIE
repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the balance EXRFER ZEEHCEEEBENAET
is denominated in HK$ and is approximate to its fair value. HIME - WEEARERES -
'Aﬂ
AMOUNT DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 30 EfNFERERNRE

INTEREST

Amount due to non-controlling interest is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand. The carrying
amount of balance is denominated in HK$ and is
approximate to its fair value.

PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

As at 31 March 2014, the amounts represented the
proceeds received in advance from Rights Issue which was
completed on 3 April 2014.

31

FERIEERERNBAEER 28K
RERREE - uA—r:uﬁ%ZﬁEE'fﬁL/{

T - RHAR B

R PSR

R=Z— Ei_ﬂ_+—av%ﬁﬁﬁ
BB =~ A = AR
BRARFT {3308 ©
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32 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 32 WEBKMIE A R
On 9 July 2014, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of R-E—NE+ANB  NEEURE
a company and its subsidiary, which is specialising in the 3,000,000 T WE—H AT REETHN
finance leasing, at a consideration of HK$3,000,000. BhE R E WK B A 7] H) 100% I% A FEES ©
Details of the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities AN EREEREBBEZ ARBRERIK
acquired and goodwill at the date of acquisition are as EHZEE0T
follows:
Pre-
acquisition

carrying Fair value
amount adjustments Fair value

WHBAIREE AAERE DRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Assets and liabilities acquired EWBEENREE
Other receivable =R e 2,000 - 2,000
Net identifiable assets and liabilities FHRAEEREEZRE 2,000 - 2,000
Goodwill arising on acquisition U B P A 1,000
3,000
Total consideration satisfied by: BREBUTHNERS
Cash paid W 1,000
Assignment of other receivable FA 78 K B 82 5 L th R UK 3R TE
to the Vendor upon completion FEH 2,000
3,000
Purchase consideration settled in cash W EE R BIAR S S+ (1,000)
Cash and bank balance acquired WEEIR € RIRTTH R -

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition RUNEMELE 2R EmH (1,000)
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33 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 33 & —FEIM B A 3k

On 31 July 2013, the Company entered into a disposal
agreement (the “Disposal”) with a company beneficially
owned by a former director of the Company, who is also a
director of a subsidiary and a former subsidiary, Asian Atlas
Limited (“Asian Atlas”), of the Company. Pursuant to the
disposal agreement, the Company (i) disposed of its 100%
equity interest in Asian Atlas and (ii) assigned the
shareholder’s loan of approximately HK$95,424,000 in full
owing from Asian Atlas to the Company for a cash

R-ZT—=F+A=+—H AQAHE
RAR—BAEES (EMAARRE—MH
M8~ 7] & —E ATt 8 A & Asian Atlas
Limited ([Asian Atlas|) 2 E =) B HA
ZAR RN MEERE(HES
H]) - REBELEHZH  A2FINRESR
{2 40,000,000% 7T ()i £ Asian Atlas 2
100% B& A HE 7 K (i) 7B 282 3% Asian Atlas
FES AN 2 R 2 B B B FR 49 95,424,000 7%

consideration of HK$40 million. IT o

The Disposal was completed on 30 September 2013. The
major classes of assets and liabilities of Asian Atlas as at

HEEEER-_ZE—=FAA=1tH=
BX ° Asian Atlasi HETRB 2 E B &

the completion date of the Disposal were as follows: ENaEERMT
HK$'000
FHETT
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE:
Plant and equipment BT 61,211
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables % FAFIEREMERGRIE 2,508
Inventories FE 4,246
Cash and bank balances REMIRTET 1,162
Trade payables FEfTBRFR (6,504)
Accruals and other payables FERTE A & E b IR (1,746)
Amount due to a former director Bt —RATEEFKIA (36,119)
Amount due to the Company JEfH AN B FRIE (95,424)
(70,666)
Assignment of amount due to the Company HEREN AN EIFIE 95,424
Net asset value BEFE 24,758
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary B E— B A kS 15,242
Total consideration BRE 40,000
Satisfied by: BATHAERN -
Cash Ei 40,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of mEE—RHHBARMELEZ
a subsidiary WREFRA
Cash consideration HEREB 40,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of HEZIHE MIRTTARR (1,162)

38,838




Annual Report 2015 e 2015 FF R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fos B U 05 A Wik

34 COMMITMENTS 34 FEE
(a) Capital commitments (@) BAEE
The Group had the following capital commitments as AN 22 B P8R A HA R A LA R B A &
at the end of the reporting period: £
Group Company
N ZNA
2015 2014 2015 2014

—®-HF —T-NF “B-HF —TOF
HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TAT TR TAT

Contracted but not provided for: & 5T 418 B 48 -

— Leasehold improvement —HEE(E - 309 - 309
— Investments in the PRC — R B A A
subsidiaries WER 387,870 = - =
387,870 309 - 309
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) KEHEHRE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under KA HEER L EHEIR T 2R K
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: HEBERNFBRELOT ¢

Group and Company

AEBRAAT
2015 2014
S —=—mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Not later than 1 year TER1E 2,426 2,224
Later than 1 year but not BR1EETERSF
later than 5 years 2,224 4,650
4,650 6,874

None of the leases include contingent rentals. BMEHERSHNEE -
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35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

35 GERERERE

STATEMENT
(a) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to (@) BRBEAEEEKSEERFAR
net cash used in operations SREZHE
2015 2014
—E-a% —F-WEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaExT FET
Profit before taxation BR 75 A1 42 ) 8,816 (3,487)
Finance costs A& AN - 419
Depreciation e 2,189 1,061
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B A RS - (15,242)
Interest income F 2 A (16) =
Unrealised gain on held-for-trading  #HEEEHRE R BRI
investments (14,300) -
Share-based payment expenses ARG D BERE T A MRS 262 =

(b)

Cash used in operations before
working capital changes

Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables

Increase in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables

Increase in net finance lease

KR EBEE S BBACEET
FrREE (3,049) (17,249)
FEURBR TR A, (3 h0)
1,385 (1,385)
%e - AAFEREMmER
SRIEE N (68,074) (1,369)
JE s i FE B SR TEF R N

payment receivables (69,847) -
Increase in unsecured 478 41K 160 UK R SR A T

loan receivables (16,222) -
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &R (3L 0) 932 (1,962)
Increase in trade payables FE A BRFIE hn 2,344 4,103
(Decrease)/increase in amount FE —E R E R R FUR

due to a related company R A>), /& mn (41) 41
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, FEFTEA - HAuERIR

other payables and deposit RBYazeEm Ond)

received 127,895 (863)
Net cash used in operations REETEFTAR S F5R (24,677) (18,684)

Major non-cash transaction

(b) EEHFREXRSH

()  During the year ended 31 March 2014, the () #HEZZT—NF=A=+-—
Group recognised non-cash expenses arising BEA  ANEBERKEE

from the accrued finance costs of HK$419,000.

AITBER A Z IR EHX
419,000 T °
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

During the year, apart from those disclosed

Aok 1 V5 9 0 B i

36 FRAEALRS

(a)

RER - BREEAMBREREMED

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, R £, » ANEF D EGEEA
the following significant transactions were carried +THETUTEARS :
with related parties:
2015 2014
—E-a% —F-WEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Proceeds from disposal of a HE—EWN B AR FTSHIA
subsidiary (note (i) (B EE () - 40,000
Purchase of a vehicle registration B8 B B B RC SRS (P RE (D))
mark (note (ii) - 4
Notes: M3

(i) The Company disposed of a subsidiary to a company
beneficially owned by Mr. Lau Chun Ming, a former
director of the Company who is also a director of a
subsidiary and a former subsidiary of the Company.

(i) The Company purchased a vehicle registration mark from
a related company of which a former director, Mr. Chen
Shaohua, has beneficial interest.

License to use a property granted by a
related company

The Company was licensed a right to use an office
property at an zero consideration under a license
agreement by a related company of which a director,
Ms. Zheng Juhua has controlling interest. Pursuant to
the terms of the agreement, the Company will bear
the costs incurred for using the property and both the
parties can terminate the license by immediate
notice.

The license has been terminated in April 2014.

Key management compensation

The compensation of key management personnel
paid or payable by the Group in respect of the year
totalling HK$3,080,000 (2014: HK$2,495,000).

(b)

()

(i) RRABRARR —ZREES SR
REL(EMARAR—MBIEA
Ak —FHANBARZESR)Ea
BERzARHE—RHBRF -

(i) ARBR—BIEEERIELRE
BEESERINRBET — @
BB RS ©

H—RXRAEAEQAAREERY
E A
REEFHAEAR(EFBRIEXL
THRAREERER) P25
‘% - NARERGERER
R—ERAEYE - RIFZL K
R ARRAEER 2 MERE
2B - MaI#& 77 Al LA RNE 3
R LR RPHE -

Rt R — T —MEMAELE -

FEEE A B R

REBRAFTEENKENESE
B A B Z 3B & 43,080,000
TL(ZZ—MU4 : 2,495,000 7T) °
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37

38

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors of the Company regard Superb Smart Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as
being the ultimate holding company of the Company.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting period on 17 April 2015, the
Company entered into a placing agreement with a placing
agent to place shares comprising up to 67,520,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each at a placing price of HK$1.0 per placing
share. The placing was completed on 6 May 2015, with net
proceeds of approximately HK$65.5 million which has been
fully applied into the finance leasing business of the Group.

37

38

BRARZER A T
AARESERRBRZHSEMAKL
2 Superb Smart Limited &7 A &) i 445
BAT] o

HREE
RBEFRERN_-_ZT-—HAFOA++
B AREIREERER AR E W -
BREERMNAREEB10ETEERS
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2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-HF —TWNF ZT—=F = —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHIT FAT T FHAT
Results E
Revenue WA
continuing operation FHB AR e 322,056 12,943 - 24,915 -
Discontinued operations DRI %R - = = = 53,099
322,056 12,943 = 24,915 53,099
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREERDE A (EE)
continuing operation B sk 8,816 (3,487) (31,409) (36,226) (36,186)
Discontinued operations EARIEETS - = = - 47,931
8,816 (3,487) (31,409) (36,226) 11,745
Taxation (charge)/credit FIE (), e
continuing operation R B A e 3k (835) - - (336) 72
Discontinued operations EARIEFTS - = = - 874
(835) = = (336) 946
Profit/(loss) attributable to VN/NCIESY SN
owners of the Company Al (E51E)
Continuing operation FHERE T 7,983 (3,487) (31,409) (36,562) (36,114)
Discontinued operations BRIEES - - - - 48,805
7,983 (3,487) (31,409) (36,562) 12,691
Profit/(loss) attributable to RS RS (L
non-controlling interests wm A, (E518)
Continuing operation HIER TS (2) = = - -
Discontinued operations BRIEET - = - - =
(2) - - - -
7,981 (3,487) (31,409) (36,562) 12,691
Dividends fi% &, - - — - 138,920
Assets and liabilities BEERAE
Total assets BEMRE 352,003 207,353 82,354 69,655 85,422
Total liabilities AafEBsE 136,378 147,141 51,350 36,482 15,687
Net assets BEFE 215,625 60,212 31,004 B 1738 69,735







	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover

